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SUDHA APPARELS LIIMTED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 40" Annual Report along with Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 31° March 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The highlights of the financial results are as under:

(Z in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Total Income 4779.10 7665.19
Profit before Tax 1803.21 2138.16
Less: Provisions for Diminution in value of investment - (380.37)
Less: Provisions for non-performing Assets - (1071.10)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1803.21 3589.63
Less: Tax Expenses:
Current Tax 417.00 436.00
Tax Adjustment for Earlier Years -
Profit after Tax 1386.21 3153.63
Other Comprehensive Income 2344.26 935.43
Total Comprehensive income for the year 3730.47 4089.06
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Total income of the Company during the year was Rs. 4779.10 lakhs as against Rs. 7665.19 lakhs in
the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs 1803.21 lakhs as against Rs. 3589.63
lakhs in the previous year. The Profit after tax was Rs. 1386.21 lakhs as against Rs. 3153.63 lakhs in
the previous year.

DIVIDEND
With a view to conserve resources for future business operations of the Company, your Directors do not
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in nature of business of the company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the year no amount is proposed to be transferred to the General Reserves.

SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company has one associate namely Kushagra Infrastructure Private Limited.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013, a statement containing salient
features of the financial statements of the subsidiary and associate companies is attached to the
financial statements of the Company.

Further pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013, the financial statements
of the Company and consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents are available on
the website of the Company www.sudhaapparels.com


http://www.sudhaapparels.com/

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Companies Act 2013 and Accounting standard AS-21 on consolidated Financial
Statement read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on Accounting for Investments Associates, the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with Auditors’ Report form part of Annual Report

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Sunil Gautam, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Shri Mangat Ram Garg resigned as a Director of
the Company on 10" November, 2020.

Brief resume of Director who is proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is furnished in the notice of
Annual General Meeting.

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company as on 31.03.2021 are Shri Sunil Gautam, Whole Time Director, Shri Rajesh Gupta,
Company Secretary and Shri Arup Mitra, Chief Financial Officer.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the year 2020-21, 5 (Five) Board meetings were held. The details whereof are given in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out the Annual performance evaluation of its own, Board
Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board, after seeking inputs from all Directors on
the basis of the criteria such as Board composition and structures, effectiveness of Board processes,
information and functioning etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as composition of Committees, effectiveness of
Committee meetings etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the
Individual Directors on the basis of criteria such as contribution of the Individual Director to the Board
and Committee meetings.

Also in a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent Directors,
performance of the Board as a whole was evaluated and the chairman was evaluated, taking into
account the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Performance evaluation of Independent
Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters provided in Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Adequate measures have been adopted by the Company to anticipate, plan and mitigate the spectrum
of risks it faces. The Company’s business operations are exposed to financial risks including Liquidity
risk etc.



The Board of the Company has approved the Risk management Policy of the Company and authorized
the Audit Committee to implement and monitor the risk management plan for the Company and also
identify and mitigate the various element of risks, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten
the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

As per the provisions of Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has in place
adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements. Audit Committee
periodically reviews the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls.

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness was observed.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state:

(i) thatin the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed and there are no material departures;

(i) that the accounting policies selected and applied are consistent and the judgments and estimates
made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) that the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2021 have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

(v) that the internal financial controls laid down by the Board and being followed by the Company are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi) that the proper systems, devised by Directors to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws, were adequate and operating effectively.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the amendments to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021, is available on the Company’s website
http://wwwsudhaapparels.com.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of Shri Vibhore Kaushik, Chairman, Dr. Roma Kumar
and Shri Sunil Gautam, as its other members. The terms of reference are in conformity with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI
(LODR) regulations, 2015.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and has established the necessary Vigil Mechanism
for Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s Code of conduct. The said policy has been disclosed on the Company’s
website under the web link http://www.sudhaapparels.com/SudhaWhistleBlowerPolicy.pdf

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
(CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation
of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on CSR activities, which
has been approved by the Board.


https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-management-administration-rules-2014.html
http://wwwsudhaapparels.com/

The Annual Report on CSR activities in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure to this report.

The CSR Policy may  be accessed on the website of the Company
https://www.sudhaapparel.com/CSR%20Policy%20-Sudha.pdf in accordance with the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186(11) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Section 186 are not
applicable to any acquisition made by a non-banking financial company registered under Chapter IIIB of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and whose principal business is acquisition of securities (i.e.
investment and lending activities).The Company has not given any guarantee or provided any security.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties during the
year were in ordinary course of business and on an arm/s length basis

All related party transactions are periodically placed before the Audit Committee for review and
approval.

Information on transaction with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and are appended in Form AOC-2 as Annexure to this
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance has been annexed as part of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required under Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. A detailed analysis of your Company’s performance is discussed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee under Section 4 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
year no complaint was filed before the said Committee.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder,
M/s Kanodia Sanyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
your Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2020.

The observations of the Auditors are explained wherever necessary in the appropriate Notes on
Accounts. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark

COST RECORDS
The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standard i.e SS-1 and SS-2 relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively have been duly followed by the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
The Board has appointed M/s Hemant Singh & Associates, Company Secretaries to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31°


https://www.sudhaapparel.com/CSR%20Policy%20-Sudha.pdf

March, 2021 is annexed herewith as an annexure to this Report. There has been no qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2020-21 for all applicable compliances as
per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted to the stock exchanges within
prescribed time from the end of the financial year.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company is an NBFC — ND and not accepted any deposits during the year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

In view of the business activities of the Company, the information relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required under Section 134(3) (m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employees, as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
forms part of this report.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid by way of sitting fees for each meeting of the Board of Directors
and Audit Committee attended by them. The particulars of the employees who are covered by the
provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Employed throughout the year Nil
b) Employed for part of the year Nil

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS
No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
after the end of the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 and till the date of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board expresses its grateful appreciation of the assistance and co-operation received from Central
and State Governments, Banks & Financial Institutions and Shareholders.

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the devoted contribution
made by the employees & associates at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Gurugram Sunil Gautam Savita Jindal
Dated : 12" August, 2021 Whole Time Director Director



Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board
g) Amount paid as advances, if any
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s
website at www.sudhaapparels.com

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sl. | Name of Designation/Nature of Number of Number of meetings
No. | Director Directorship meetings of of CSR Committee
CSR Committee | attended during the
held during the | year

year
1 | Mrs Savita Chairperson, Non- 1 1
Jindal Executive Director
2 | Mr. Vibhore Member, Independent 1 1
Kaushik Director
3 | Mr. Sunil Gautam| Member, Executive 1 1
Director

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

The composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects are disclosed on
www.sudhaapparels.com

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report).: Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any : Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 2742.40 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5):
Rs. 54.85 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 54.85 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Rs. 9.85 Lakhs


http://www.sudhaapparels.com/
http://www.sudhaapparels.com/

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Amount Unspent (Rs. In Lakhs)

Total

Section 135(6)

Amount
transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per

Amount

transferred
specified under Schedule VII as per
second proviso to Section 135(5)

to

any

fund

Amount

Date of transfer

Name of the Fund

Amount

Date of
transfer

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

-Nil

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
(1) [ (2) (3) (4) ®) (6) (7) (8)
Name of the | Item from the | Local | Location of the Amount Mode of | Mode of implementation -
Project list of area | project spent for | impleme | Through implementing
activities in (Yes/ the ntati on - | agency
schedule VIl | No) project (in | Direct
to the Act Rs.) (Yes/No)

State District Name CSR
registration
number

1 Promoting Clause (i) No Mahar | Nagot | 20,00,000 | No Through B | CSR00001699
Health Care | Eradicating ashtra | hane C Jindal
hunger, Charitable
poverty and
malnutrition, Trust
2 | Promoting promoting No Haryan | Hisar 25,00,000 | No Through CSR00001467
Health Care | health care a Maharaja
including Agrasen
preventive Medical
health care Education
&
Scientific
Research
Society
Total | 45,00,000

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 45.00 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. Nil




9.

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining to
Financial transferred to spent in specified under Schedule VIl as per | be spentin
N | Year Unspent CSR | the section 135(6), if any succeeding financial
o] Account under | reporting years (In Rs.)
Section 135(6) | Financial
(Rs.) Year (Rs.)
Name of Amount Date of
the Fund (Rs.) transfer
1 2018-19 NOT APPLICABLE
2 | 2019-20 NOT APPLICABLE
3 | 2020-21 Yet to be 45,00,000 NIL 9,85,000
transferred
45,00,000 NIL 9,85,000
TOTAL

10.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for on-going projects of the

preceding financial year(s):

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise

details)

No capital asset was created / acquired during 2020-21 through CSR spend of the

Company.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per Section 135(5) : Due to on-going projects

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with
CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sunil Gautam
Whole Time Director

CFO Certificate

Savita Jindal
Chairperson, CSR Committee

In terms of Rule 4(5) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as
amended, |, Arup Kumar Mitra, Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certify that the
funds so disbursed for CSR activities during the financial year 2020-21 have been utilized for the
purpose and in the manner as approved by the Board of Directors.

Arup Kumar Mitra

Chief Financial Officer




FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31* March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SUDHA APPARELS LTD
2/5, Sarat Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar Flat No. 8A,
Kolkata-700020

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SUDHA APPARELS LTD (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to us and the representation made by the Management and considering the relaxation granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, generally complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent based on the management representation letter/ confirmation, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, according to the provisions of: -

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the Rules made there under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

Page 10of4
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 — (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008- (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with respect
to issue of securities;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 —
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a. Non-Banking Financial Company-Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and other relevant guidelines and circulars
issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time and periodic reporting done by the
Company.

b. and other relevant guidelines and circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to
time and periodic reporting's done by the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the Standards/ Regulations of the following:
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, as per our audit of records of the Company and as per the explanations
and clarifications given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above:

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

The decisions of the Board were carried out through unanimous votes, no dissenting views of any
Director was recorded in the minutes maintained by the Company.

Page 2 of 4
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines
etc.

Disclaimer: As informed by the Company Management, a major fire accident had erupted at the
Corporate Office of the Company on January 05, 2021, damaging the Company records and
database. For the purpose of issuance of this Certificate, we have relied our audit on documents
made available by the management team, inspection of public documents of Company available on
the MCA portal and Company’s website for the period under review. We have further relied on the
declaration received from the management of the Company stating that the Company has complied
with all the requisite regulations as stated in this report.

It is to be further noted that due to the prevailing nationwide pandemic scenario and unavoidable work
from home circumstances, our team could not follow the usual course of audit procedure which includes
physical verification of the requisite compliances. Our opinion, as stated in the report is based on
documents and information as made available by the Company via email.

For Hemant Singh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Hemant Kumar Singh

(Partner)

Membership No: F6033

Date: 12.08.2021 COP No : 6370
Place: Delhi UDIN: F006033C000775428

Note 1: The listed entity had made a bonus issue of 62,800 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each to non-
promoter/public shareholders of the Company during financial year 2019-20. Corporate Action
for credit of shares in allottees’ demat accounts is pending with NSDL/CDSL and subsequently
the paid-up share capital of the listed entity has not been updated on the stock exchange till date.

Note 2: This Report is to be read with Annexure A, which forms an integral part of this report.

Page 3 of 4
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Annexure A

The Members
SUDHA APPARELS LTD

2/5, Sarat Bose Road,
Sukh Sagar Flat No. 8A,
Kolkata-700020

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the
random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemant Singh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Hemant Kumar Singh

(Partner)

Membership No: F6033

Date: 12.08.2021 COP No : 6370

Place: Delhi UDIN: F006033C000775428
Page 4 of 4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sound Corporate Governance is essential to enhance the shareholders’ trust and value. Your Company
conducts its affairs with the highest level of integrity, with proper authorizations, accountability,
disclosure and transparency. The Company strongly believes in maintaining a simple and transparent
corporate structure driven solely by business needs. Shareholders interests are on utmost priority while
protecting the interest of other stakeholders, customers, suppliers and its employees and the
management is only a trustee to carry out the activities in a truthful and fruitful manner.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements as stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regard to corporate governance.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Company’s policy is to have appropriate mix of Executive and Non-Executive/ Independent
Directors including one women Director on the Board. The number of Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)
exceeds 50% of the total number of Directors. None of the Directors hold Chairmanship of more than 5
Committees or Membership in more than 10 Committees of the Companies as required under
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, across
all the companies in which they are Directors. The Directors have made necessary disclosures
regarding their Committee positions.

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

A Certificate under Clause (i) of point (10) of para C of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 by M/s Hemant
Singh and Associates, Company Secretaries confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the
Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority is attached as Annexure A.

Board Functioning & Procedure

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board meets at least once in every quarter to review the quarterly
results and other items of agenda as required under the said regulations thereof.

During the year ended 31 March, 2021, the Board of Directors met (5) Five times on 31 July, 2020,
24" August, 2020, 11™ September, 2020, 10™ November, 2020, and 12" February, 2021.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings during the
year and at the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships held by them in other
companies as on 31% March, 2021 are given below:

Directors Category Shares Attendance No. of Other Directorship and Committee
held Memberships/Chairmanships held
Board Last Director | Name of | Category Committee | Committ
Meetin | AGM ship other of Membershi | ee
g Listed Directorsh | ps Chairma
Entities ip nships
Smt Savita | Non- 1,06,662 2 Yes 1 - - -
Jindal Executive
Non
Independent
Shri Vibhore | Non- - 5 Yes 2 [Stable Independent 1
Kaushik Executive [Trading Co.  |Director
Independent Ltd
Dr. Roma | Non- - 5 No 3 Maharashtra [Independent 1
Kumar Executive [Seamless Director
Independent Limited
Shri Sunil | Executive - 5 Yes 1 -
Gautam
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Shri Mangat | Non- - 3 No 4 - B
Ram Garg* Executive

*During the year Shri M.R. Garg resigned from the office of Directorship w.e.f 10.11.2020

Note:

1. Only Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees are considered.
2. Excludes directorship in Foreign Companies.
3. No Director is related with other directors.

During the year 2020-21, information as required in Schedule Il Part A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been placed before the Board for its
consideration. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company’s Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year without the presence
of Non- Independent Director or management personnel, inter alia, to discuss:

- the performance of Non Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole.

- the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive &
Non-Executive Directors.

- the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to effectively perform its duties.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 12" February, 2021. All Independent
Directors were present at the meeting.

Familiarisation Programme

The Directors are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies to enable
them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures & practices. Periodic presentations are made at the
Board and Committee meetings on business and performance updates of the Company.

The detail of familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the Company’'s
website and can be accessed at http://www.sudhaapparels.com/Programme.pdf.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors (incorporating duties of
Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013) and Senior Management personnel.
The Code has also been posted on the Company’s website www.sudhaapparels.com

The Code has been circulated to all members of the Board and senior management personnel and the
compliance with the Code of Conduct is affirmed by them annually.

A declaration signed by the Whole Time Director of the Company is given below:

This is to certify that, all Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management for the financial year ended 31* March
2021.
Sunil Gautam
Whole Time Director
Date: 12" August, 2021

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set out in the Regulation 18 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee provides directions towards the audit functions and
monitors the quality of internal and statutory audit.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include overseeing the financial reporting process, to
ensure fairness, sufficiency and credibility of financial statements, review findings of internal auditors
relating to various functions, recommendation of appointment and removal of statutory auditors, internal
auditors and fixation of their remuneration; review of the quarterly and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board, with particular reference to matters required to be included in the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of Sub-
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section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; review of adequacy and compliance of internal
control systems and the internal audit function; review of compliance with laws; inspection of records
and audit reports; review of findings of internal investigations; review of statement of significant related
party transactions; review of management letters/letter of internal control, weaknesses issued by
statutory auditors, discussion on the scope of audit with external auditors and examination of reasons
for substantial defaults, if any in the payment to shareholders; review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower mechanism etc.

COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of 3 Directors, out of which two are Non — Executive
Independent Directors and one is Executive Director. All members of the Committee possess
knowledge of Corporate Finance, Accounts and Company Law. The Chairman of the Committee is a
Non-Executive Independent Director. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are noted by the Board of Directors at the subsequent Board
Meeting.

During the year under review four Audit Committee meetings were held on 31° July, 2020,
11" September, 2020, 10" November, 2020, and 12" February 2021. The Composition of the Audit
Committee as on 31% March, 2021 and attendance at its meetings is as follows:

Members Designation No. of meetings attended
Shri Vibhore Kaushik Chairman 4
Dr. Roma Kumar Member 4
Shri Sunil Gautam** Member 1
Shri Mangat Ram Garg* Member 2

*Shri Mangat Ram Garg ceased as member on 10.11.2020
**Shri Sunil Gautam appointed as member w.e.f 10.11.2020

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to review the internal control systems of the Company
and to report thereon. The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors periodically.

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as per guidelines set out in the
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The said Committee has been entrusted to formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to
remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria
for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity, identifying
persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal etc.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company is comprised of three Non-Executive
Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Non-executive Director. During the year
under review meetings of the Nominaion and Remuneration Committee were held on 12" February
2021. The Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on 31% March, 2021 and
attendance at its meetings are as follows:

Members Designation No. of meetings attended
Shri Vibhore Kaushik Chairman 1
Dr. Roma Kumar Member 1
Smt Savita Jindal Member 1
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is designed to attract, motivate, improve productivity and
retain manpower, by creating a congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives, personal growth
and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and involvement, besides offering appropriate
remuneration packages. The policy reflects the Company's objectives for good corporate governance
as well as sustained long- term value creation for shareholders. This Remuneration Policy applies to
Directors, senior management including its Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees of
the Company.

Remuneration of Whole Time Director reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guiding
principles of the Company. When considering the appointment and remuneration of Whole Time
Directors, due consideration is given to pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit and
seniority of the person and the paying capacity of the Company.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and
objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged under the Companies Act 2013, inter alia principles
pertaining to determining qualifications, positive attributes, integrity and independence etc.

Remuneration also aims to motivate personnel to deliver Company's key business strategies, create a
strong performance-oriented environment and reward achievement of meaningful targets over the short
and long-term.

The remuneration of other employees is fixed from time to time as per the guiding principles outlined
above and considering industry standards and cost of living. In addition to basic salary they are also
provided perquisites and retirement benefits as per schemes of the Company and statutory
requirements, where applicable. Policy of motivation/reward/ severance payments is applicable to this
category of personnel as in the case of those in the management cadre.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company has been uploaded and can be accessed on
the website at https://www.sudhaapparels.com/NRC%20Policy%20-Sudha.pdf

Details of Directors’ Remuneration

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 31% March 2021 are as
under:

a) Details of remuneration paid to Whole -Time Director:

)
Name Salary Perquisites & other Total
benefits
Shri Sunil Gautam 7,75,232 Nil 7,75,232

b) The Non-Executive Directors are paid by way of sitting fees for each meetin9 of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee attended by them. During the year ended 31% March 2021, No
Remuneration was paid to Non-Executive Directors in view of them having waived their entitlement
to receive the sitting fee.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Your Directors have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in reference to the
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013

The Constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 31% March, 2021 is as

under:-
Members Designation
Smt. Savita Jindal* Chairperson
Shri Vibhore Kaushik Member
Shri Sunil Gautam** Member
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*Smt. Savita Jindal was appointed as a Chairperson w.e.f 10.11.2020
**Shri Sunil Gautam was appointed as a member w.e.f 10.11.2020

Note: During the year Shri Mangat Ram Garg ceased as Chairperson/member w.e.f 22.10.2020
on his resignation as Director of the Company and Dr. Roma Kumar ceased as member w.e.f
10.11.2020 on reconstitution of the Committee by the Board.

The said Committee has been entrusted with the social responsibility of formulating and
recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating
the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the
framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on the CSR activities.

During the year under review the said committee met on 31° July 2020. All the members of the
Committee were present at the meeting.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee under Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Chairman of this committee shall be
a Non-Executive Director of the Company. The Committee meets periodically, to approve inter-alia,
transfer/ transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates and reviews the status of investors’
grievances and redressal mechanism and recommends measures to improve the level of investor
services. Details of shares transfers/transmissions approved by the Committee are placed at the Board
meetings from time to time.

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31® March, 2021 was as under:-

Members Designation
Smt Savita Jindal Chairman
Dr. Roma Kumar Member
Shri Sunil Gautam** Member
Shri Mangat Ram Garg* Member

*Shri Mangat Ram Garg ceased to be member w.e.f 22.10.2020 on his resignation as Director of the
Company
**Shri Sunil Gautam appointed as a member w.e.f 10.11.2020

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

The Board has designated Mr. Rajesh Gupta, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer of the
Company.

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND REPLIED TO THE SATISFACTION
OF SHAREHOLDERS

Number of Shareholders complaints received during the period 01.04.2020 to

31.03.2021 Nil
Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of shareholders N.A.
Number of pending complaints as on 31.03.2021 Nil

DESIGNATED EMAIL ID FOR INVESTORS
The Company has designated an exclusive email id for redressal of investors grievances i.e.
secretarial@sudhaapparels.com

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(I) Details of the last three Annual General Meetings:
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Financial Date Location of the Meeting Time

year

Registered office of the Company, Kolkata

2017-18 | 28.09.2018 11.30 A.M
2018-19 27.09.2019 Registered office of the Company, Kolkata 11.30 AM
2019-20 28.09.2020 Through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Video 3.00 P.M

means(VC/OAVM)

(I1) Special resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings.

th
a) In the AGM held on 28" September, None
2018
th a) Issue of Bonus Shares to non-promoters
b) I2no1tge AGM held on 277 September, (Public) shareholders of the Company
b) Amendment of Object Clause of
Memorandum and Association
c) Amendment of Liability Clause of
Memorandum of Association
d) Amendment of Articles of Association
c) In the AGM held on 28" September, None
2020

(I1) Special resolutions passed through Postal Ballot

During the year under review, no special resolution was passed through postal ballot.

None of the special resolutions is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company’s financial results are communicated forthwith to Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited,
where the Company’s shares are listed, as soon as they are approved and taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Thereafter the results are normally published in the Financial
Express, & Sukabar (Bengali). The financial results and all other relevant information are being
uploaded on the company’s website www.sudhaapparels.com.

8. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 Certificate on Corporate Governance has been annexed to the Board's Report.

9. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
and Companies Act, 2013 the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors, KMPs and designated persons.

10. CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to the
Corporate Governance, the Board has identified the following core skills/expertise/ competencies for
the Board of Directors in the context of business of the Company to function effectively and those

actually available with the Board as follows:

(i) Industry specific knowledge/experience;

(ii) Financial literacy/expertise including appreciation of legal/ regulatory issues;

(iii) General administrative expertise including HR matter; and

(iv) Knowledge of contemporary socio economic issues.




1.

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board has identified the following core skills
| expertise / competencies of the Directors in the context of the Company’s business for effective
functioning as given below:

Smt. Savita Jindal | Dr. Roma Shri Sunil Gautam | Shri Vibhore Kaushik
Kumar

Industry specific Yes Yes Yes Yes
knowledge/ experience
Financial Yes Yes Yes Yes
literacy/expertise
including appreciation of
legal/ regulatory issues
General  administrative Yes Yes Yes Yes
expertise including HR
matter
Knowledge of Yes Yes Yes Yes
contemporary socio
economic issues.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting:
Date & Time . | 30™ September, 2021 at 11.30 A.M.
a) | Venue : | Not applicable since A.G.M will be held through Video
Conferencing (VC) or other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM)
b) | Financial Year .| 1" April, 2020 to 31% March, 2021
c) | Book Closure : | Not applicable
d) | Dividend : | Not applicable

Financial Calendar (Tentative):

Financial reporting for the quarter ended 30™ June, 2021 Aug., 2021
Financial reporting for the quarter ending 30" Sept. 2021 Oct/Nov 2021
Financial reporting for the quarter ending 31 Dec. 2021 Jan/Feb 2022
Financial reporting for the Quarter/year ending 31% March, April/May,2022
2022

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, 7, Lyons
Range, Kolkata — 7000001 (West Bengal) and Listing fee upto the year 2021-22 has already been
paid.

Scrip ID : SUDHA APPARELS
Stock Code : 10029405
NSDL/ CDSL - ISIN : INE207F01012

Market Price Data
There was no trading of shares of CSE during the period from 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL index
etc.

Not Applicable as the Company is listed on CSE only.




In case Securities are suspended from trading, the Directors shall explain the reason thereof:
Not Applicable

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31°"TMARCH 2021

No. of equity No. of % of No. of % of
shares held shareholders shareholders shares held shareholding
1-5000 44 77.20 74 0.01
5001-10000 0 0.00 0 0.00
10001-20000 0 0.00 0 0.00
20001-30000 0 0.00 0 0.00
30001-40000 3 5.26 106476 13.48
40001-50000 0 0.00 0 0.00
50001-100000 5 8.77 324061 41.03
100001 & 5 8.77 359201 45.48

above
GRAND 57 100.00 789812 100.00
TOTAL

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31°" MARCH, 2021:

CATEGORY No. of Share Held SharZ)Hc::Iding
Promoters 5,70,012 7217
Public* 2,19,800 27.83
GRAND TOTAL 7,89,812 100.00

*Includes 62,800 Bonus equity shares of Rs. 10/- each allotted on 1% January, 2020. Corporate action
for credit of shares in allottees demat account is pending with NSDL/CDSL.

Dematerialization of Shares

92.98% of total paid-up equity shares of the Company were in dematerialized form as on 31°" March,
2021.

Outstanding ADR/GDR/ Warrants and Convertible Bonds, Conversion date and likely impact on
equity:
There is no outstanding GDR/Warrants and Convertible Bonds etc.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities
Company's nature of business is of investment and financing, hence there is no commaodity price risk or
foreign exchange risk.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:
Alankit Assignments Limited,

Alankit House,

4E/2, Jhandewalan Extension,

New Delhi — 110055

Phone: 011-42541234, 011-23541234

Fax: 011- 23552001, e-mail: info@alankit.com

Share Transfer System:

In accordance with the Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, effective from April 1, 2019, transfers of shares of the Company,
except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities, shall not be processed
unless the shares are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Shareholders holding equity
shares in physical form are requested to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely
transfer them.
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Investor Correspondence Address:
Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at the
address given above or to the Corporate Office of the Company.

Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form should address all their correspondence to their
respective Depository Participants.

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES

i)

i)

vi)

vii)

Related Party Transactions

There have been related party transactions as reflected in Notes to the Financial Statements
but they are not in conflict with the interest of the Company. All transactions have been
approved by the Audit Committee.

The Board has approved a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions which has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at the following link
http://www.sudhaapparels.com/SudhaRPTPolicy.pdf

Accounting Standards

The Company has followed Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in the preparation of the
Financial Statements for the financial year ending 31% March, 2021. The significant accounting
policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Details on Non Compliance

There were no instances of non-compliance imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange,
SEBI, or any other statutory authorities on any matter related to the capital markets during the
last 3 years.

CEO/CFO Certificate

Shri Sunil Gautam, Whole Time-Director and Shri Arup Kumar Mitra, CFO have furnished the
required certificate to the Board of Directors pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for Directors and employees to report concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of conduct.
No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy
has been disclosed on the Company’s website under the web Ilink
http://www.sudhaapparels.com/SudhaWhistleBlowerpolicy.pdf

Adoption of Mandatory and Non- mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. However, the Company has also
complied with following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 (1) read with Part E of
Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Audit Qualifications
The Financial Statements of the Company are unqualified.

Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditors of the Company make presentations to the Audit Committee on their
reports.

Risk Management
The Company has detailed Risk Management Policy and the Board periodically reviews the
procedures for its effective management.
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viii)

Subsidiary Companies
The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary company.

The Company has adopted a Policy in line with the requirements of the Listing Regulations.
The objective of this policy is to lay down criteria for identification and dealing with material
subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework for subsidiaries of the Company. The
policy on Material Subsidiary is available on the website of the Company under the web link
https://www.sudhaapparels.com/MaterialSubsidiary.pdf

ix) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under regulation 32(7A)
Not applicable during the financial year.

X) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed
along with reasons thereof
The Board accepted the recommendations of its Committees, wherever made, during the
financial year.

xi) Total Fees For All Services Paid By The Listed Entity And Its Subsidiaries, On A Consolidated
Basis, To The Statutory Auditor And All Entities In The Network Firm/Network Entity Of Which The
Statutory Auditor Is A Part:

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Notes to the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company.
xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
a. number of complaints filed during the financial year — Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year — Nil
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year — Nil
13. DISCLOSURE ON NON COMPLIANCE
There was no such non compliance made by the Company on Corporate Governance Report
as required under sub para (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Date: 12" August, 2021 Sunil Gautam

Whole-time Director
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members
SUDHA APPARELS LTD

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SUDHA
APPARELS LTD (CIN: L17299WB1981PLC033331) (‘the Company’), as stipulated in
regulations 17 to 20 & 22 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and Para C, D & E of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the said Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

On the basis of our findings of our examination of the records produced and explanations and
information furnished to us, and the representation made by the management, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For HEMANT SINGH & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

HEMANT KUMAR SINGH

(Partner)

Date: 12.08.2021 M. No.: F 6033
Place: Delhi COP No.: 6370

UDIN: F006033C000775439
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

SUDHA APPARELS LTD
2/5, Sarat Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar Flat No. 8A,
Kolkata-700020

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Sudha Apparels Ltd having CIN L17299WB1981PLC033331 and having its registered
office at 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar Flat No. 8A, Kolkata-700020 (hereinafter referred to as
‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in] as considered necessary
and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March,
2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such
other Statutory Authority:

S.No | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment
1. Ms. Savita Jindal 00449740 30/12/2005
2. Mr. Vibhore Kaushik 01834866 30/01/2017
3. Ms. Roma Kumar 02194012 08/08/2019
4 Mr. Sunil Gautam 08125576 01/06/2019

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For Hemant Singh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Hemant Kumar Singh
(Partner)
M. No: F6033
CP No.: 6370
UDIN: F006033C000775483
Date: 12.08.2021
Place: Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT and Management Discussion and Analysis Report contains
"forward-looking statements" about the business, financial performance, skills and prospects of the
Company. Statements about the plans, intentions, expectations, beliefs, estimates, predictions or
similar expression for future are forward-looking statements.Forward-looking statements should be
viewed in the context of many risk issues, and events that could cause the actual performance to be
different from that contemplated in the Directors' Report and Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, including but not limited to, the risk arising from impact of changes in interest rate fluctuation,
economic and political conditions. We cannot assure that outcome of this forward-looking statements
will be realized. Factors like changes in Government regulations, tax laws and other factors may
further influence the Company's operations or performance. The Company disclaims any duty to
update the information given in the aforesaid reports.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFCs”), are one of the most critical pillars for financial services
in India. They play an important role in reaching out to a hitherto under /unserved and thereby broad-
basing the formal lending ecosystem, and at the same time, bringing the benefits of formalization to
the ‘Bharat’ we know. NBFCs cater to the needs of both retail as well as commercial sectors and, at
times, develop strong niches with their specialized credit delivery models that even larger players
including banks have found hard to match. They play a critical role in supporting economic growth
across income levels, sectors as well as geographies, and in doing so, leading to more employment
opportunities and greater wealth creation.

Over the past few years, NBFCs have steadily gained prominence and visibility with NBFCs’ credit as
proportion of scheduled commercial banks’ non-food credit rising sharply during 2014 to 2019.
However, the challenging macroeconomic environment, weaker than expected demand, liquidity
concerns, and lower investor confidence in the sector, led to a significant moderation in the financial
performance in FY 2019-20. While there were green shoots of recovery in the second half of the year,
the spread of COVID-19 at the beginning of FY 2020-21, significantly altered the growth outlook. The
whole country witnessed a lockdown at the beginning of the financial year which curtailed any hope
for economic recovery post the lows of FY 2019-20. The financial services were severely hit during
this time, as on one hand, the demand for credit plunged, and on the other hand, the quality of the
book worsened.

The first half of FY 2020-21 saw the first wave of the pandemic peaking in the month of September
and gradually lowering down by February, 2021. This period was accompanied by an upswing in the
business as well as financial performance of the sector with most of the NBFCs reaching pre-COVID
business volumes as well as collections in the fourth quarter of the year. However, with the second
wave hitting the country and the consistent rise in the number of new infections, there may again be
significant disruption in the business operations affecting all segments — retail as well as commercial.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer behaviour and pandemic fears, as well as
restrictions on business and individual activities, has led to significant volatility in global and Indian
financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The extent to
which the COVID-19 pandemic, including the current “second wave” that has significantly increased
the number of cases in India, may impact the Company's performance and will depend on the on-
going as well as future developments, which are highly uncertain. This would include any new
information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or
mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by us.

The Company invest mainly in D.P. Jindal group companies with the intent to hold for long term
appreciation, to enhance the income from dividends and are not held for trade. The Company
continues to remain invested in securities, which have the potential to remain value accretive over the
long term.

26



OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

NBFCs have played an important role by providing funding to the unbanked sector by catering to the
diverse financial needs of the customers. Further, such companies play a critical role in participating
in the development of an economy by providing a fillip to transportation, employment generation,
wealth creation, bank credit in rural segments and to support financially weaker sections of the
society. In order to revive the economy, the Reserve Bank of India had announced numerous
measures to inject liquidity and keep the cost of funds benign to increase credit offtake and promote
economic growth. The regulator increased credit offtake to both Micro, Small & Medium enterprises
and Consumer segments.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in the business of Finance/Investment activities. There is no other
segment. Therefore, there are no separate segments for reporting as per the Accounting Standard
AS-17 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

As an NBFC, your Company is subjected to both external and internal risks. External risks due to
interest rate fluctuation, slowdown in economic growth rate, political instability, market volatility,
decline in foreign exchange reserves, etc. Internal risk is associated with your Company's business
which includes the strategic investments in a specific sector. Any downward movement in the
prospects of the sector could be a threat to the Company's prospects. At this juncture of rapidly
evolving macroeconomic risks, it becomes imperative for business to track the macroeconomic
performance on an ongoing basis. Your Company recognizes the importance of risk management and
has invested in people, process and technologies to effectively mitigate the above risks, so as to
arrive at a profitable investment decision.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control system, commensurate with its size and nature of
operations, covering assurance of recording all the transaction details, regulatory compliance and
protecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or misuse. Accounting records are adequate for
preparation of financial statements and other financial information. Internal Audit is conducted on a
periodical basis to ascertain the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Total income of the Company during the year was Rs. 4779.10 lakhs as against Rs. 7665.19 lakhs in
the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs 1803.21 lakhs as against Rs. 3589.63
lakhs in the previous year. The Profit after tax was Rs. 1386.21 lakhs as against Rs. 3153.63 lakhs in
the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company has employed professionals/experienced persons, playing an important role in the
operations of the Company. The Company will strengthen its operative staff as and when the need
arises.

CAUTIONARY NOTE

Certain statements in this Report may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied, depending
upon economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental/related factors.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of Sudha Apparels Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sudha Apparels Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information {hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone Ind AS financial statements’).

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act,
2013(the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards(” Ind AS”) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, of, of the state of affairs {financial position) of the Company as at 31 March, 2021,
and its Profit {financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes In equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statement in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India{lCAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant te our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act,
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021, These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statement as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Continued.......c.cviciiiiiiiciians
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Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of the material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The results of our
audit procedure provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial

Statements.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 35 in the financial statements relating to Company holds 150 Bonds of Yes
Bank for Rs. 152,685,000/-. In present scenario the value of Bonds is nil. The holders of Yes Bank Bonds
approached to Apex Court and placed a proposal to Yes Bank Bonds are converted into Equity Shares in
ratio of 1 Bond: 19551 equity shares of Rs. 2 each with locking period of 3 years. The decision is pending
in Apex Court. Further we refer note no. 28 relating to Capital Advance and note no 26.3 relating to a fire

occurred on 5™ January 2021,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does
not include the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report
containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not caver the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

Continued
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This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable , matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the sta ndalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

Continued.......oimmnmineisis
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, Including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probabie that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be infiuenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with the governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’} issued by the Centrai
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2, Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that :
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the hest of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as It appears from cur examination of those books; Continued.....ooeveiiiinnn,
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. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate report in

‘Annexure B’. our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the

Company to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the

Act.

. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements. Refer to Note 26 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31,2021,

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered ﬁccountanps
FRN: 008396N '

(Paltav Kumdy Vaish)
Partner

Membership no.: 508751

UDIN: 21508751AAAAFD2245

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30™ June 2021

1520, Ansal Tower, 38, Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (INDIA)
Tel. : +91-11-26452344, 26467214, Fax: +21-11- 41000897, E-malt : kancdiasanyal@gmail.com
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

{c)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. in accordance with this
program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company.
The Inventory representing units of Mutual Fund is held by the Company in Demat Form which
has been verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the
explanations given to us, the frequency of verification is reasonable, and no material
discrepancies were noticed on the aforesaid verification,
The Company has granted unsecured loans to body corporates covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’}; and with respect to the
same:
In our opinion, rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been
granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act
were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
In the case of the loans granted to the body’s corporate listed in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of interest and the
principal amounts are being recelved/renewed on the due dates.
There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body carporate listed in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost under section 148(1) of the
Act, for any services rendered by the Company.

Continued.....covierens

33



Annexure A to the Auditors’ RePort.... e COMun.

(vii)

(viii}

(ix)

(xi)

(a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, ESI, income tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, ES{, income tax, good and service tax, duty of customs, cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of
customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute. However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
income tax, Goods and service tax, Custom duty and cess have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes:

Amount
F dis i
SNt:ttl:JT:z of  the Nature of the dues Disputed Z::;;:IWhere Ispute Is
{Rs/Lacs) P g
1.IncomeTax  Act | Income Tax demand' 4.53 CIT(A) AY 2008-09
Income Tax demand 3.80 CIT(A) AY 2012-13
t Oct.
2. Service Tax | Service Tax demand 38.18 A2l SO 0 E L
Sep. 2011

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defauited in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan either
from financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197, read with
Schedule V to the Act. ContinUed.......oienininniiinnes
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(xii)

(xili)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanaticns given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and on the basis of records and documents examined by us the company is
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and the company has
obtained such registration.

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates

Cha rter&g&ccou ntants
FRN; 0083

(Pallav Kimar Vaish}

Partner

Membership no.: 508751

UDIN: 21508751AAAAFD2245

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30" June 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sudha Apparels Limited (‘the
Company’) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {‘ICAI'}. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financia! Controls over Financial Reporting {‘the Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals aver financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

(001 0141110 [=]« [
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”,

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants ,

Partner

Membership no.: 508751
UDIN: 21508751AAAAFD2245

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30™ June 2021
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f SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

|

BALANGCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH' 2021

|____ - —r—— —— ——— p—
Particulars ”N":" As 8t31.03.2021 | As at 31.03.2020
ASSETS
{1) |Financlal Assets
{a) |Cash and cash equivalents 1 18,098,771 25,680,742
{b) |Bank Balance other than (a) above 2 3,50,00,000
{d} |Recelvables
} Trade Receivables 3 42,71,80,707 4,42,20,821
i} Other Recalvables
{8} |Loans q 1,85,17,58,851 1,49,64.47,752
(i |lnvestments § 2,64,82,07 469 2,22,04,84,701
(g) [Other FInanclal assets 6 2,14,23,594 2,05,79,045
{2} |Man-financial Assets
(a) [invenlories 7 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
(b} |Current tax assets (Net) 8 48,36,47,120 44,72,51,152
{c) |Deferred tax Assats {Not} . .
(d) |Invesiment Property 9 57.40,01,565 59,28,16,440
{0) [Biclogical asssts olher than bearer plants =
{f) |Properly, Plarit and Equipment 9 14,52,36,268 14,61,93,660
{g) |Capilal workn-progrees
{k) |Other nor-financial assels 10 6,65,07 961 6,64,00,518
Tofal Assets 5,99,06,28,3153 5,08,09,44,831
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1) |Financlal Liabilities
{a) |Payables
(I)Trade Payablas
1) dues of micro enterprises and smal enterprises
Iy dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small anterprises
{ll) Qther Payablas
I} dues of micro enterprises and smal enterprises
it dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
{b) [Debl Secutities
{c) |Borrowings (Other ihan Debt Securtles) 11 1,36,58,30,050 04,64,77.076
(g) [Other financial llabllitlas 12 3.84,28,225 3,44,24,935
{2) [Non-Financlal Llabilittes
(a) |Gument tax liabllities (Net) 13 46,05,62,161 41,88,82,164
{b) |Provislons 14 94,062,602 45,090,609
{c} |Deferred tax liabillties (Net} 15 16.75.10,917 9,3B,05,832
(d} |Other non-financlal llabilities 16 66,62,790 84,41,136
{3} [EQUITY
(a) |Equity Share capltal 17 78,988,120 78.98,120
{b} [Other Equity 3,83,84,73.450 3,56,54,25,871
Total Liabliities and Equity 5,89,08,28 315 5,06,08,44,831
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report of aven date ettached
For KANQDIA SANYAL & A}SSOCIATES For and on bohalf of the Board
Chartered Rocountants
Flrm ReglslmtIT{l No. GrB3oeN )
N M .

\ 4 - @HG—JT S
Pallay Kiknar Vaish Sunll Gautam - Savita Jindal
Pariner Whola Time Director Diractor

DIN - 08125576 DIN - 00448740

tdembership No. 508751

Placa: Gurugram
Date: 30.06.2021

7~

(T

éjesh Gupla

company Seoretary

F4BTO

Bt

Arup Kumar Mitra
CFO
PAN - AQHPM2661A
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH' 2621

Panpar

Membership No. 508751

e & - For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars Mota Ho. | a4stMarch'2021 | 31stMarch' 2020
() |Revenus from oparations ) o - ]
{Ii |Interesl Income 14,72,09,687 13,78,10,880
v} [Sale of Mulual Fund Units 14,40,17,482 46,77,95,604
(v} |Sale of Invesiment
{vl) |Dividend Income 49,77,283 2.01.25,886
tviv)  |Rental incoms 18 13,0,05,900 13,97,32,800
(i} |Profiton sale of praperly {aet} .
{viv] |Gthers 7,00,000 10,50,000
Total Revenua fram operaticns 47,79,10,558 76,65,10,270
N} |Other Income
{i) |Othars
{I}  |Tolat Incoma {1411} 47,79,10,559 76,65,18,270 |
Expansoes
(i} |Financa Costs 19 7.09,81,631 6,66,34,687
{)  |Nelloss on fair value changes 20 34.07.315 40,97.660
(W) |Impalment on financial Inslruments . -
(v} |Costof materials consumed -
{¥1} |Purchases of Stock-in-rade 21 15,40,17,489 24,04,13,682
{vil) [Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-In- trade and work-in- progrese 23 79,257,991 24,56,02,888
{viii) |Emplayes Benalfite Expenses 23 27,332,691 32,55,306
{Ix) |Depreclation, amortization and Impelment 2] 1,84,02,003 2,07.71,328
{x)  |Olhvers expenses (lo be specliied) 24 80,70,798 27,568,260
Logs on fire In Bullding 168,174 .
Contingent Provision agalns! Standand Assels 6,080,140 {30,979)
(W} |Tolal Expansas {IV) 29,75,09,520 55,27,03,039
{(¥] [Profit {loss) before exceptianal ltama and tax {I-IV) 18,03,21,029 21,38,16,231
(Vi) |Exceptional liems
Provislon for Diminullan In value of Investment {3,80,37,314)
Provislon for Non Performing Assets - {40,74,08 870}
Vi) |Profil/{loss) befora tax (V VI ) 18,03,21,039 35,69,63,418
{VIll) [Tax Expanse:
a)  |Cument Tax 4,17.00,000 4,36,00,000
b} |Defamad Tax : 1
€)  [Tax Adlustment for Earler Yeara
{1X) |Profit / (loss) for ihe perlod from continding operations{VII-vIll}
() |Profit|loss) from discontinuad opsrations
(X1} |Tax Expense of discontinued operallons
(X} |Prfitflioss) from discontinued operationa(afier lax) (X-XI)
{1l |Profitf{loss) for the paried {IX+X1l} 13,06,21,03% 31,53,63.415
{XI¥} |Other Comprehensive Inceme
{A)](1) tems that will not be reclassifiad to proflt or loss
1, Equity Insiruments through OCI 30,81,53,4H 12,29,63,489
2. Re-measurmant of difinad benefit plan {21,807)
(i1} Incame tax relating te ftems that will not be raclassified to profit of loss (7,37.06,085) {2,84,10,475)
Total A 23,44,25,540 6,35 43 014
(B)|(1) trerma that will be reclassified (@ profit or loss
Change In falr value cf equity inslrumant
(Il) Incoma 1 ralating to hems that will ba reclassifled to profit or lose
Totnl B - .
Other Comprahanslve Income (A + B) 23,44,26,530 9,35,43014
(XV} |[Total Gampeahionsive Lncome for the parled (KI+XIV} a7,30,47,579 40,88,06 429
{(Xvl} (Earnings per aequity shar {for contlnuing oparatlons)
Basle (Rs.) 25 175,61 399.28
Diluted {Rs.} 25 175.64 309.29
Soa accompanylng notes (o the financial statements
In terms of our report of aven date allached
For and on behalf of the Board

For mnog& SANYAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartared
Flrm Regletration {jo. BOSIEGN

N\

Pallav Kumifft Vaish

ounianis

Place; Gurugram
Data; 30.06.20217

Sesifo- Theet-

Savita Jindel

h

Sunil Gautam
Whata Time Diractar Diragtor
DIN - DB1256576 DIN - 004497 40
Bt
ﬂ-/.-/}s
ajesh Gupla Arup Kumar Mitra
mpany Secralary CFO
F4870 PAN - AGHPM2861A
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— SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED e
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH' 2021
particulars For The Year ended For The Year ended
st March' 2021 3315t March' 2020
Net Profitf{Loss) befere Extraordinary ftems and Tax i 18,03,21,039 21,38,16,231
Adjustments for:-
Depreclation and amartisation 1,94,02,093 2,07,71,326
Interast Income
IND AS Adjustment 34,07 315 30,97,560
Dividend Receivad / Proflt or Loss an redemption of invéstments
Lass/(Profit) on transfer of land
Finance Cost
contingent Provision for Standard Assets Written hack 8,80,140 {30,979}
Operating profit f{loss) before warking capltal changes
Changes In warking capltal ;
AdJustment for {increase |/decrease In operating assets
Trade Receivables and Other Financlal assets {8,29,39,886) 9,15,31,030
Inventorles 79,27,991 21,56,02,888
Adjustment for Increase/{decrease) In operating Wabillties
Trade payabte & other payable (49,56,193) (24,35,799)
Other financlal Nabiligles
Provisions
Cash generated fram Operatians
DirectIncome tax(paid)/refunds (8,14,23,676) (4,49,84,109)
|Net Cash flow from f{used In) operating activitles{A) 4,26,18,823 49,73,68,148
sh Flow 1 nvesti ivitie
Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment, Intanglble assets
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Fixed Assets (58,770)
Long term loan advances
Met praceeds from sale/{purchase) of Investments {42,77.22,768) (21,94,57,730)
Sale of Investments
Interest Recelved
Met Cash flow fromf{used In} Investing Activities( B) (42,77,22,768) (21,95,311,500)
Cash Flow from Financing Actlvitles
Proceeds from borrowings {including Ind AS adjustments) -
Net increase/(Decrease) In berrowings 41,93,52,974 (9,44,66,525)
Interest pald
Net Cash Flow from /{used In} Financing Activitles { C) 41,93,52,974 (9,44,66,525)
|Net Incrzase fidecrease} [n Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,42,49,029 18,33,90,123
(A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25,60,742 2232679
cash and tash equivalents at the end of the year 3,68,00,771 25,60,742
See accompanylng hotes to the financial statements
In terms of our repart of even date attached
For KANODIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES For and on behaff of the Board
Chartered Accountanls
Firm nguau’on No. n?aﬁen
,\ | Seviba- Thgte]
/ TN e
\ / -
Sunll Gautam Sevlta Jindal
Whale Time Director Direclor
Membarsilip No. 508751 DIN - 08126570 DIN - 00440740
L]
Place: Gurugram ajesh Gupla Arup Kumer Mitra
Date: 30.06.2021 Jompany Secralary CFO
FABTO PAN - AQHPMZ661A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

2)

Background
Sudha Appareis Limited ('the Company') is registered as Non-Banking Financial Company {NBFC} as defined under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {RBI). The Company is primarily a holding company, holding
investment in its subsidiaries, associates and other group companies. The Company's subsidiaries and associates
are engaged in a wide array of business in the financial service sector.
Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed
below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the pericds presented in these financial
statements.

a) Statementof compliance with IND AS:
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {hereinafter
referred to as the "Ind-AS"™) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, pursuant to section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 (The Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015) and comply in all material aspects with their
provisions .

b) Basisofpreparation:
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets
and liabilities that are required o be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

c) Reporting Presentation Currency:
All ameunts in the standalone financial statements and notes thereon have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR)
(reporting and primarily functional currency of the company;}.

d) Useofestimates and critical accounting judgments:
In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying values of assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and the underlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
Due to the nature of the Company's operations, critical accounting estimates and judgements principally relate to the:;

e} Recoverability of Trade Recelvables
Judgemenis are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible acticns that can be taken to mitigate the risk of
non-payment.

f) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing
of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change.These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refiact the current
best estimates.Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assels are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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g} Property, plant and equipment:
An itemn of property, plant and equipment s recognized as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing,
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of the
replaced part is derecognized . Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having
different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all
direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset {o its working condition and location for its intended use.
Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of cost of the gqualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

On transition to Ind-As, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognized as at 1st April 2019, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

h) Intangible assets:
Intangible assets are capitalized where it Is expected to provide future enduring ecenomic benefits. Expenses incurred
on up gradation fenhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional

benefits.

Intangible assets with finite usefu! lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
i) Depreciationand amortization of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets:

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use, Depreciable amount for assets is the
cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment has been provided on "Siraight Line Method" Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided on pro-rata basis based on the useful life as per Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated.Leasehold lands are depreciated over the period of lease
tenure. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary,
revised. The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible

assets are:
Estimated useful life of the tangible asset, based on the useful life as per Schedule Ilto the Companies Act, 2013.

j}  Impairment of Assets:

Assets are {ested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. .An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Forthe purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash infiows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units).

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset {or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed
the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or
cash generating unit} in prior years . A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss immadiately.

k) Leases:
Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Finance lease :
As a lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as Assets of the Company at their fair value at the

inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The cerresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease abligation.




(i}

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease cbligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognized
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalized .

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

As a lessor
When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of minimum lease payments is recognized
as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of receivable is recagnized
as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognized over the ferm of the lease using the net investment
method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

a) Operating Leases
As a lessee
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company,
as lessee, are classffied as operating leases. Paymenis made under operaling leases are charged to the

Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

As a lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the excepted inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.
1} Investment insubsidiaries and associates:
Investment in subsidiaries and associates are shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of invesiment, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

m} Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a parly o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial fiabilities at fair value through profit and loss} are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recogniticn of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilittes at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Effectiveinterest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating

interest income or expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future

cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial agsets

Cashand bank balances

Cash and bank balances consist of:

{a) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash at bank and in hand, short term deposits and highly liquid
investments with an eriginal maturity of three months or less which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject te an insignificant risk of change in value. These balances with banks are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

{b) Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and
usage.

Financial assets atamortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amorlized cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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n)

(i)

i}

iv)

Fairvaluethrough othercomprehensive income {(FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business model whose objective is fo hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which
are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument

by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments.

Fairvalue through profit or loss:
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried
at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment offinancial assets:
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is racognized for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Fortrade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by IndAS 109 Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition offinancial assets
The Company derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Financial
Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt orequity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities.Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments Is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss Is recognized in Statement of Profit and Lass on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments.

Financial Liabllitles

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value,net of transaction costs, and are subsequenty
measured at amortized cost, usingthe effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate

fair value due 1o the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial liabilities:

The Company de- recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are being offset and the net amount reported in the Financial Statements when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the iiability simultaneously.

Derivative financial Instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments i.e. Forward Contracts to hedge its risks associated with
foreign exchange fluctuations.These derivative financial instruments are used as risk management tools only
and not for speculative purposes. The fair values of these derivative financial instruments are recognized as
assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date and gain/loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge item.

Employee benefits:

{i ShortTermEmployee Benefits

All emplayee benefits payabie within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee

benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of bonus, exgratia, compensatory leave
encashment, incentives are recognized inthe period during which the employee renders the related service.
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o)

P)

q)

{ii) Post-Employment Benefits
a) Defined contribution plan:
This benefit includes contribution to provident fund and employee's state insurance scheme administered
by government. Expenses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the
employee has rendered services.

b) Defined Benefit Plan:

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method and the retirement benefit obligation {Liabilities) is recognized in the Balance Sheet net of fair value
of planned assets .Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. The service cost and ret interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a
net expense within employment costs.

Inventories:
Units of Mutual Fund are valued at lower of cost (FIFC basis) or net realisable value.

Provisions:
Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can
be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligaticn at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisiocns are measured on a
discounted basis.
Incometaxes:
i) Currentincometax
Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement
of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ii) Deferredtax
Deferred tax fs provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at
reporting date. Deferred income 1ax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income In
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in
tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that
includes the enaciment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and tax losses can be utflized. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a
legally enfoerceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

iii) Minimum Alternate Tax
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the greup will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Inthe year in which the MAT credit becomes
eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
Statement of Proiit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement under Other Assets. The group reviews the
same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that group will pay normal Income Tax during the specified
period.
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

¥}  Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue c¢an be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
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t)

u)

(i)

Interestincome

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Ilife of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Rent Income

Income from operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit & Loss as per contractual rentals unless another
systemalic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the leased assets is
diminished.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have been
established.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to gef ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use..Transaction cost in respect
of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenure of respective loans using effective interest method.

All other borrewing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency
dependent on uncertain future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is probable. Major cantingent liabflities
are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is remote.
Contingent assels are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit
is probable,

Earnings PerShare:

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Amendment to Existing issuved IndAS

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

i. IndAS 21-The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
li. IndAS 40 - Investment Property

il. IndAS 12- Income Taxes
iv. IndAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and

v. IndAS 112 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Applications of above standards are not expected te have any significant impact onthe Company's Financial Statements.
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Annexure — 1

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

[as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial ( Non-Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016].
(Rupees)

Particulars

(1) Liabilities side:
Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued | Amount Qut- Amount
thereon but not paid: standing Overdue

{a) Debentures
Secured - -
Unsecured = -
{other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits*)
({b) Deferred Credits = -
(c) Term Loans =
{d) Inter-corporate loans and borowing 1,365,830,050 -
{e) Commercial Paper -

(h) Other Loans (specify nature) - -
* Please see note 1 below
Assets side:

Amount Qutstanding

1. Break-up of Loans and Advances inciuding bill receivable (other-

2
@ than those included in (4} below):

(a) Secured -

{b} Unsecured 1,862,830,912

{3) Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
Debtors :

{a) Financial Lease -

(b} Operating Lease =

(i)Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a} Assets on hire -
(b) Repossessed Asseis -

{ii} Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities -

(a) Loans where assets have been re-possessed -

(b) Loans other than (a) above -




Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments:

1. Quoted:
Shares: (a) Equity s

(b} Preference -

Debentures and Bonds _
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others {please specify)

2. Unquoted: :
Shares: (a) Equity -

{b) Preference S

Debentures and Bonds .
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others (please specify)

Long Term Investments:

1. Quoted:
Shares: (a) Equity 1,003,438,939

(b} Preference -

Debentures and Bonds _
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others (please specify) -

2. Unquoted:
i. Shares: {a) Equity 141,174,048
{b) Preference 195,050,000
ii. Debentures and Bonds 808, 226,200

iii.  Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
v. Others (please specify} -




(5) .Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2) and (3) above:
Please see note 2 below
Category Amount of net of provisions
1. Related Parties™ Secured Unsecured Total
Subsidiaries - _ _
Companies in the same group
Other related parties - = =
Other than related parties 2 = =
Total - e =
(6} Investors group-wise classifications of all Investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below
Category Market Value / Break- | Book Value (Net of
up or Fair Value or Provisfons}
NAV
1. Related Parties™
(a) Subsidiaries _ .
(p) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties - -
2, Cther than related parties 2,648,207 469 1,947,889,187
Total 2,648,207,469 1947,889,187
** As per Accounting Standard of ICAIl {Please see Note 3)
{7} Other Information

Particulars

Amount

{i} Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties

(b) Other then related parties

Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

{b) Other then related parties

(lily Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts

49



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Cash in Hand 27,400 27,562
Balances with schedule Banks in Current Accounts 17,82,371 25,33,180
Total 18,009,771 25,60,742
BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN (A) ABOVE
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Balances with Banks
-Fixed Deposit with original maturity of more than three months 3,50,00,000 -
Total 3,50,00,000 -
RECEIVABLES
31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Trade Receivables 12,71,80,707 4,42 20,821
Total 12,71,60,707 4,42 20 821
LOANS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Interest Accrued = =
Loans and Advances 1,85,20,48,448 1.49,89,92 287
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 1,07 82,464 75,26,526
ECL on Loan & Advances {1,10,71,061) (1,10,71,061)
Total 1,85,17,59.851 1,49,64.47,752

50



VOL'PE'POTEE | 008'ZF0ESL | LOG'LY'RL'OF' | = = 69¢'20'78'v9'2 | 000050560 69F LG LESP'E - 2 elel
000'G3'9Z°Gl 000'88'52'S) 05l 000'68'32'S} 000'68'92'S1 st temadisd pajiu Jueq sa
000006102 000'00'61'0T 00¢ 000'00'08'61 000'00'08'61 00z papn uoheladio] 18mod di
668'F1'S0'S B68'PL'SO'S = 0c epoleg o yueg
000°0F" 1151 000°0F LL'SE oSk 000°00'00'§1 000°00°00°GL [ 4 051 [emadisd jueg puig @ qelung
N0B'48'TT'S 00R'29°2Z'G 00005 000°92'98'G noo‘az'ee’s |\ G000S IWHN
/m spuog (3
=,
000'05'05'2 000°05°05"2 Q00505 000'05°05"2 000'05'05'L 0005054 17 wodea] uedieq jo yoea () sy
000'00'00'ZL 00000007 000842 000°00°00°2 ) 000'00'00°2L 000544 PEHWI WoollA Yedysud Jo Yaes O] sy
i saJeys 2aussajald {g
055'0220'8 055'0Z°c0's 0008018 e - 0005018 PE)WIN SpelEa] PUOWEI] JO Yaes g1 sy
OF0'6L'61 Or0'6L '8l 005661 L 2 00566 sl wodjea uedieq Jo yoes g sy
000'009L 000'00°9L 0000002 PEUWIT A JEINQN ] SSSIUeas pEJUN JO YOI (| 'Sy
059'66'30'L 0G9'66'SY’ L Q00561 L 004'28'50° )L 004" £2'S0" L 000SGLL PEIWIT g simonnseyu esBeysny jo yoes g1 sy
0Z€'22'SE'L 0Ze'£4'52" ) G086 OLL'GP'pE L OLL'SP e’} 0086 PN Tad aumondseyu) BwBig jo yoes g| sy
2/8'25'5G'L FAL s gs el 0186 ¥11'92'69'} vL1L'9Z'69'L aLes PaWIT Jad Yoajng sumda Jo Yoes g sy
000'80'24 000'R0'ES 000001 000°'LZ'05 000'LE'0S 000001 PRI A S2GN | X-3d |EpuIl JO yaea (] sy
loov've'28) L00F'+E'28) 00008 = - 00008 P - 211 wdalyp Jo Yoes gL sy
0Z0'v0'4S 0ZO'P02S 00018 QOR'EL'EL 098'E)'2L 00018 PajiWI Wwadea() }epeds Jo Yoes [y sy
BEEFEFFL SEEVT L 056821 2EL'¥6'89 LE1'v6'09 0558¢1 PRLWM wWwodesq eld 1o 4ies ol sy
892'6£'8L'26 99Z'68'8L'E8 0Bresrs 182" 9'2}'66 19.'19'Z1'66 08PEsPs pajli sedid [pull Jo Yoee | sy
SFE'02'49'E AL S 001004 669'66'06'C 669'86'86'S 001002 pajlr)
JUSWIS2AU| 9 SDUBLIH [BYGS) |ERUIT JO UDED () "SH
972'91'98 OZT'9L'86 00458 PEI'SO'PO') PE'G0'FQ'L 00258 pawI jespowwog dolid 4o yaea gl sy
patonbun {1
00000 a00'00't Q008 052'8L'g 05Z'92'9 0005 PN DAWN 0 yoea | sy
¥86'8b'¥2's vB8'8r'¥T'S 0b0L6E PEULLET s8USNpU) WNog apuf J yoea gl "sy
006'LG 006°45 000g 058'5L'} 059'6L'L 000e pEILLIT queg |80 0 Yoea () 'Sy
aB0'ekL 960'8) 009z 0L¥'ee’L oL¥'ee') 0092 PENLWIT XSPE] ] BXBH 4O YIBS | 'Sy
= = 0051 000's) 00051 00sL pawi ABJaug puy SEQ IO TDOAS 40 YIES ) 5y
S0E'ALSL S08°21°G1 9oF8| VES'6Y'E YES'BF'EY 99¥gl PRULIT JBMOd 3 19915 |EPULP Jo Yaes | "5y
0ir'ps 0iv'pL 0oLl SPE'IF'L SPE'LY') 0oLt Pajiw Afiojouna | Uojelo|dxg ugjes Jo YoEs Q) sy
005’89 005’88 0002 009'¢B'Y 009°E6"L 000Z PolWIN "0 Uonelojdx3 |10 UBISNPUIH 4O Yosa O} 'SY
gLE'L BIE'L 00l 056'2 058°Z 0ol PSILIT 210YSHO UB]Y JO YoES Z 'Sy
99271 99z2'%1 18407 as0'ay 090'er 18207 PalWIn salsnpul [281g POAIT 10 Yo | sy
198'9% Lv6'95 021667 §84'04'¢T S8L'04°CE 021667 PoIWN |991S SNjeA WENN 4O YOES | 'Sy
051G 0sL's 0051 GEE g2 0051 PII 2I0YSHG 109 10 Yo'S O} 'Sy
Ll bl 0ol LZv (g 0oL PILWI SBUISNPU| UCOC3PIA JO USES (] 'Sy
el alaf) 0001 als'e ols'e 0ooL paj S13d0(9A30) YIBUASIEY 4O UIES () "SY
BEE'SL VBT 8EE'SL'VE'E ZZEFLOL 288Cr'rLE ZBE'EY'FL'E CEEFLOL pajiw uyded eusdien Jo yaes o) sy
LBO'0L 2R R L LB0'0LTF'BL £6695EL 0z8'08' Lk LE 0E8'06' ¥ 28 EBBOGE| FEILIN SSSIESS BAYSRIBYRW 1O YoEs G '8y
0Ge'eT IB'EL 0SE'ET LB'EL 000L80e 058'/2'88'LE 058°22'89'42 000L80e PalwW sawsnpul g BuliLq [epuir jo yIes g sy
: pajonp)
: sRueys Qinkg {y
P+E4+Z+l=6 (%) (3] (z) () P+E+Z+I=C () (€) (4] [{3)
00 [f]s]
yBnoany anjea S50| ybnoiy) snjea S50
Jejje pajeu 1o youd 1jey JE pajeu J0 oud
Bisag 4BMoML | yopap Bisag yBnoayy Ty
1e30] 1500 1Y anjep lied 1y asgI0INY |S2IeYS o ON leloL 1500 1Y anjea Jed jy PaspIoWyY | sueys yo "oN

0Z0Z 'Udiely . 1€ 18 Sy

L20Z 'UOIEN ,IE 1B SY

SIE[MOTHEY

A3 WM S13dv¥ddY vHONS

INIALSIANI S JLON

51




7

OTHER FINANCIAL ASETS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Interest Accrued 2,14,23,504 2,05,79,045
Total 2,14,23,594 2,05,79,045
Inventories
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03.2020
Stock in Trade - Units of Mutual Fund 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
Total 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Pattlculars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Advance Income Tax (Including tax deducted at source) 48,36,47,120 44,72 ,51,152
Mat Credit Entitlement/{utiization}
Total 48,36,47,120 44,72,51,152 |
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OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Capital Advances 6,48,82,387 6,48 82 387
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets
Security Deposit 12,03,382 12,03,382
Prepaid Exp. 3,22,192 3,04,748
Total 6,65,07,961 6,64,90,518
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
{A} In India
At amortised cost
From Bodies Corporate (Repayable on demand) 1,36,58,30,060 94.64,77,076
1,36,58,30,050 94,64,77,076
{B) Qutside India = =
Total (A+E) 1,36,58,30,050 94,64,77,076
Qut of above
Secured
Unsecured 1,26.,58,30,050 94.64,77,076
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Cther Liabilities 5,865,975 B
Security Deposits 5,78,02,563 5,78,02,563
Less - Ind A3 adjustment 1,98,70,313 2,33,77,628
3,78,32,250 3,44,24,935
Other Payables
Total 3,84,28,225 3,44,24,935
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Provision for Income Tax 46,05,62,161 41,88,62,161
Total 46,05,62,161 41,88.62.161
PROVISIONS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Employee Benefits €,70,025 5,97,262
Provision for Non Performing Assets -
Provision for Diminution in value of Investment =
Contingent provision for standard assets 47,92,677 39,12,437
Total 54,62.602 45,089,699

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 Tax effect for the As at 31.03.2020
pariod

Deferred Tax Liakility

For Depreciation difference as per books and |.Tax

Act

ind AS Impact on fair value of investmet 16,75,10,917 (7,37,05,085} 9,38,05,832

Deferred Tax Assets

Carry forward Long Term Capital Loss

Disallowance under Section 43-B of |.Tax Act

Net Deferred Tax Assetsf{Liabilities) 16,75,10,917 (7,37,05,085) 9,38.05,832

OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020

Qther Liabilities 66,62,790 94.41,136

66,62,790 94.41,136
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH' 2021

A. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of Shares Amount in Rs.
Particutars AS AT AS AT
31.03.201 31.03.2020 AS AT 31.03.2021| AS AT 31.03.2020
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
At the beginning of the period 727,012 727,012 72,70,120 72,770,120
Add: Additions during the pericd 62,800 - 6,28,000
Less: Reduction during the period - - - -
At tha end of the period 7,689,812 7,27,012 78,986,120 72,70,120
ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
At the beginning of the period 727,012 727,012 72,780,120 72,70,120
Add: Additions during the periagd 62,800 - 6,28,000 -
Less: Reduction during the period - - - -
At the end of the period 7.89,812 7,27,012 78,98,120 72,70,120
Details of equity shares In the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of shares s as under:
Particulars MNumber of shares held % holding
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Equity Shares of 10 each
1. Jindal Global Finance & Investment Lid |, 107,416 1,07,416 14.77 14.77
2. Flakt Dealcom Ltd. 35,761 35,761 4.92 492
3. Pushpanijali Investrade Pvt Ltd. 98,000 70,000 12.41 9,63
4 Dharam Pal Jindal 69,900 69,900 9.61 9.61
5. Savita Jinda! 106,862 1,06,662 14.81 14,67
8. Saket Jindal 70,000 70,000 963 9.63
7. Raghav Jindal 145,123 1,45,123 18.96 18,96
£. GVN Fuels Limited 50,400 36,000 6.38 495
B. OTHER EQUITY
Items of other
Resarves and surplus comprehensive
income
Particulars Total Other
i . . Equity
Capital Sacurity Statutory General Reserve Reta!ned Other items of
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings oGl
Opening balance 5.15,81,488 - 61,38,02,626 8,27,46,507 |  2,18,46,81,521 2243,35.200 | 3,15,71,47,442
ProfitlLoss for the period {6,28,000) 31,53,63,415 31.47.35.415
Transfer during the year 6,30,73.000 @ 6,30,73,000
Transfer during the year -
R (6,20,73,000) (6,30,73,000)
Transfer during the year -
General Reserva
Other comprehensive income 9,35,43,014 9.35.43.014
Balance as on 31.03.2020 5,15,81,498 . 67.66,75,626 8,21,18,597 | 2,43,69,71,936 31,78,78,214 |  3,56,54,25,871
Opening balance 5,15,81,498 . 67,68,75,626 8,21,18,597 | 2,43,69.71,936 31,78,78.214 |  3.56.54,25,871
Profit!Loss for the period T 13.86,21,039 13.86,21.030
Transfer during the year 2,77.24,208 - 2,77,24,208
Transfer during the year -
Statutory Reserve (2,77.24,208) (2,77.24,208)
Transfer during the year -
General Reserve
Other comprehensive income 23,44,26,540 23 44.26 540
Balance as on 31.03.2021 6.15.81,498 . 70,45,89.834 8.21,18,597 | 2,54,78,68,767 55,23,04,754 |  3,93.84,73,450




18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

F
Particulars For the year ended 310;:&3&:’:::;0"2?(1
31st March' 2021
Interest on Intercorporate Loan 10,70,80,707 8,80,69,664
Interest on Bond 4,01,29,180 4,97,41,216
Sale of Mufual Fund Units 19,40,17,489 46,77,95,604
Rent Received 13,10,05,900 13,97,32,900
Profit on sale of property {net) -
Agriclture Rent 7,00,000 10,50,000
Dividend 49,77,283 2,01,29,886
Tofal 47,79,10,559 76,65,19,270
18 OTHER INCOME
For the year ended  |For the year ended
Particulars 31st March' 2021 31st March’ 2020
Liability written back - -
Miscellaneous [ncome - -
Total - =

19 FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended | For the year ended
particulars 3MstMarch' 2021  [31st March’ 2020
Interest on Intercorporate Loan 7,08,35,443 6,67,90,346
Interest - On Others 1,46,188
Bank Charges 44,341
Total 7.09,81,631 6,68,34,687
20 Net loss on fair value changes
For the year ended  [For the year ended
Partictlars 31stMarch’ 2021  [31st March' 2020
Loss on fair value of Investments 34,07,315 30,97,560
Total 34,07,315 30,97,560

21 PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March' 2021 |31st March' 2019
Purchases 18,40,17,489 24,04,13,982
Total 18,40,17,489 24,04.13.982

22 Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in- trade and work-in- progress

For the year ended

For the year ended

Decreasel{Increase) in Stock in Trade

AL 3stMarch’'2021  |31st March' 2020

Item - Mutual Fund Units

Opening Stock 4,40,00,000 25,96,02,888

Less - Closing Stock 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
79,27,991 21,56,02,888

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

For the year ended

For the year ended

G ) 31st March' 2021 31st March' 2020

Salaries , Wages, Allowances and Bonus 27,111,099 31,67,670

Staff Welfare 22,792 87,636
27,33,891 32,55,306

Total
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24 OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended  |For the year ended

Rhe 31st March’ 2021  |31st March' 2020
0U.P. Charges 26,157 3,155
Rent 1,25,242 97,500
Rates & Taxes 6,22 272 1,654,221
CSR Expenses * 45,00,000 5,00,000
Postage & Telephone 52,608 53,652
Printing & Stationary 7,114 6,420
Fee & Subscription 31,600 50,100
Travelling - Director - -
Travelling & Conveyance 2,12,300 462,335
Insurance 4,87 355 2,563,313
Repair & Maintenance-Building - -
Repair & Maintanance-Others 1,74,152 2,68 696
Electricity Expenses 6,87 463
Connectivity Expenses 15,120
Legal & Professicnal Charges 7,268,560 5,08,153
Investment Written Off - -
Internal Audit Fee 11,800 11,800
Advertisement & Publicity 64,878 66,476
Auditers' Ramuneration :
- Audit Fee 88,500 88,500
- Tax Audit Fee 11,800 -
- Certification f others services 1,38,650 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 87,225 2,36,048
Loss on sale of Investment - Net .

Total 80,70,796 27,568,269

25 EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential

equity shares outstanding during the year -

Particulars

Rs in Lakhs

For the year ended
31st March’ 2021

For the year ended
31st March' 2020

Basic / Dllutlve Earnings Per Share

Profit after tax as per profit & loss account 13,86,21,038 31,5363 415
Weighted Average number of equity shares 7.89,812 789812
Basic and diluted earnings per share 175.51 399.29

* EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Details of expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as per Section 1350f the Companies Act, 2013 read

with schedule Vi are as balow.

Health

Rs. In Laks

Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the 54,85 52.00
b) Amount spent on:
i} Construction / acquisition of assets
i) on purpose other than (i) above 45.00 5.00
Details of Amount spent towards CSR is given below
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Education B 2.00

45.00 -
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Contingent Liabllities | Commmmitments not accounted for

Disputed Income Tax Demand { under appeal})
For AfY 200210
For AfY 2013-14

n respect of Bank Guarantee issued by Indusind Bank Limited (previously by Kotak
Iahindra Bank Limited }in favour of New Town Electric Supply Company Limited

4,53,410
3,680,280

1,36,84,350

453,410
3.80,280

1,36,84.350

A tire accldent ocecurred on 5 January, 2021 at the Corporate Office of the Company at Gurgaon. Most of the records of the Company were burned and the
Company is in the process of reconstructing the same. Loss incurred to building is being assessed and necessary accounting treatement will be made on finailsation

of insurance claim.

SERVICE TAX LIABILITY

The Company has not provided for its Service Tax liability on "Renting of Immovable Property” to some lenants for the period from October, 2010 to
September, 2011 amounting to Rs. 76,35,432/- which has been disputed by these tenants through thelr assoclation before HonbYle Supreme Court, of
which 50% of the ammear dues amaounting to Rs. 38,17.716/- has been directly deposited by these tenants with the Service Tax Authority under the '
direction from the Apex Court and for the balance 50% of Service Tax dues, the final adiudication of the Apex Court Is awaited. The Company, howsaver,
holds written commitment from such tenants for reimbursement of all liabilities arising due to non-payment of Service Tax by the Company.

Related Party Disclosure as per Ind AS 24

a. Key Managarial Personnel
Mr. Sunil Gautam - Wholetime Director
IAr. Arup Kumar Mitra - CFO
Mr. Rajesh Gupta - Company Secretary

Related Parties with whom Transaction have taken place during the year

31.03.2021

31,03.2020

Particulars
Remuneration
K

ey Management Personal

20,00,546

33,890,321

b) Other Related Parties with whom Transactions have taken place during the Year

Assoclate Company
Kushagra Infrastructure Pwvit. Limited

Other Related ConcernfParty
Smit. Savita Jindal {Director)
Transacacti vith Related Pal uriny ear

Loan to Associate Company (closing balance)

Payment to Other Related Party { Smt. Savita Jindal}
a. Rent Paid
b. Other Services

Transactlons with Related narties durina the Year

Managerial Remuneration - Mr. Sunll Gautam - Wholetime Director

NOTES DN CAPITAL ADVANCE

Capital Advances of Rs.64,882,387/- (Previous Year Rs. 64,882,387/-) under Note no. - 8 represent advances made to various partles

71,009,870

97,500
97,500

775,232

71,09,870

97,600
97,500

£.23.230

(LocalfAgricultarilist) for purchases of various plots of fand at different locations in the state of Maharashtra on behalf of the Campany for investment
purpose. Although the company holds original title deeds in respect of all such land purchased by these parties & taken possession of the land
properties, the final conveyance Infavour of company Is pending due te restrictions imposed by the local authorities. Suitable apprepriation of such
capital advances would be made upon execution of conveyance desds/settlement of accounts with all these parties upon disposal of the same.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has this year ldentified two reportable primary Business Segment on the basls of risk & return invelved, which are financing & Investment

and Renting of Property.

Segment Revenue, Results & other information

Finance &
Particulars Investment Ranting of Property Others Total
income from operations 34,69,04,659 - - 34,69,04,659
(60,56.06,484) {-} {-} {60,56.06,484)
Other operating Income - 13,10,05,900 - 13,10,05,900
{2,11,79,886) {13,97.32,900) {-} {16,09,12,7886)
Segment Results 34,69,04,659 13,10,05,900 - 47,79,10,559
{62 67,86,370) {13,97,32,800) {-1 {76,65,19,270)
Finance cost 7.08.81,631 - - 7,09,81,631
{6.68,61,830) {-) {- (6,68.61,830)
Other expenditure 20,72,05,796 1,94,02,093 " 22,66,07,889
(46,50.97,026) {2,07,71,326) (-} {48,58.68,352)
Profit f {Loss) before Tax 6,87,17,232 11,16,03,807 " 18,03.21.039
{9.48,54,657) {11,88.61,574) -} {21,38,16,231)
Segment Assets 5,24,33,56,923 74,74,71,392 - 5,99,08,28,315
(4,44.40,07,570) (63,68.37 261) {-) (5.08,08.44.831)
Segment Labllity 2,00,60,28,520 3,84,28,225 - 2,04,44,56,745
(1,44,97,12,276} (5,78,08,563) {-} {1,60,75,20,839)
Gapital employed 3,23,73,28,403 70,90,43,167 - 3,94,63,71,570
{2,99,42,95,294) {57.90,28,608) {-) {3,57,33,23,092)
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GRATUITY

The presant value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Discloser for defined plans based on actuarlal reports:

Changes In the Present Value of Ohligation

Particulars 31-Mar-21 3i-Mar-20

Present Value of Obligation as at the heginning 3,64,439 13,60,475

Current Service Cost 63,754 39,811

Interest Expense or Cost 24,782 90,663

Re-measurement {or Actuarial) {gain) / loss arising from: 0 o
change in demographlc assumptions 0 0

change in financlal assumpticons o 0

experlence variance {i.e. Actual experiencevs assumptions) 0 [1,88,237)

Actuarlal Losses {Gains) 21,807 0

Past Service Cost 0 0]

Effect of change In forelgn exchange rates o] u]

Beneflts Pald 0 9,38,273

Acquisition Adjustment 0 o]

Effect of business comblnations or disposals 0 0

Prasent Value of Obligation as at the end 4,74,782 3,64,439

Bifurcatlan of Present Value of Obligation attheend of the year as per revised Schedule IIl of the Companles Act, 2013

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Liability [Shert term) 8,729 6,985

Mon-Current Ligbillty {Long tarm) 4,66,053 3,57,454

Present Value of Dbligation 4,74,782 3,64,438

Changas in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning - -

Investrnent Income =

Employer's Cantribution -

Employee's Contributian -

Renefits Pald

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense -

Agguisitlon Adjustment

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end - -

Change In the Effect of Asset Ceillng

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Effect of Asset Celling at the beginning -

Interest Expense or Cost (to the extent not recognised in net interest expense -

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/loss arising because of change In effect of asset cailing. -

Effect of Asset Ceiling at the end - .

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Service Cost 63,754 39,811

Past Service Cost :

Loss / {Galn) on settlement - -

Nat Interest Cost / (Income] on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 24,782 90,663

88,536 1,30,474

Expenses Recognised In the Income Statement
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Other Comprebensive Income

Partlcutars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Actuarial {galns} / losses
change [n demographle assumptlons
change In financlal assumptlons -
experlence varlance {l.e. Actual experience vs assumptlons) {1,88,237)
others 21,807 .
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognlsed in net interest expense
Re-measurement {or Actuarial} {galn}/loss arising because of change in effect of asset
celling E
Components of defined benefit costs recognlsed In other comprehensive Income 21,807 (1,88,237)
Malor categorles of Plan Assets (as percentage of Total Plan Assets}

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Particulars

Government of India securities
State Governmeht securitles
High quallty corparate bonds
Equity shares of listed companles
Property

Special Deposit Scheme

Funds managed by Insurer

Bank balance

Other Investments

Total
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fon - 135 of tha Companigs Acl, 2013 tHe Company has constiiuled a Corporate Soclal Rasponsiblity

In terms of provish talned under Si
{CSR) Committoa. The primary function of the commiliee Is le assigs the Boand of Direclors in formulating o C8R palicy and raview the
Impl tation and progress of the same from time lo lime.

Baged on Informslion avallable with iha compeny, thare are no duse owed by the company Lo Micr, Small & Madlum Enterprize, which ara

Tha Company hes not mede any pravigion for Dividend racelvable on 12% Redemabls Cumulsiive Convertlbls Prelerance Sharee lesuad by
Crishpark Vincom Limited.

The retirement benefit of the employees of the cumpany |5 recognised on payment basts as & when arlsed,

RESERVE EANK OF 'NDIA REGISTERED NON BANKING FINANGE COMPANY
The company I& registerd as Non Banking Financa Compeny with Reserve Bank of indla vide Reglstralion no, 05.02274 dated 18.05.1996.

Addltional particulars as requiced In terms of paregreph 13 of Non Systamically Important Non-Banking Financlal (Non-Depoait Accapiing or Holding
Companlas) Prudontial Norms (Resarve bank) Directlons, 2015 sapretaly atiched as Annaxure - 1.

Company hold 150 Bonds of Yes Bank for Rs. 152,685,000/~ in present scanarlo the valg of Bonds ls nll. The holdars of Yes Bank Bonds,
approchad 1o Apex Court and placed a proposal to Yes Bank Bands are converted In ralk of 1 Bond: 18551 equity shares of Re.2 sach with locking
period of 3 ysara, The declslon s pending In Apax Court

Previous years figuses have baan ragrouped / rearsnped whare ever nacassary.

Tha Bccompanylag notes are an Integral part of the financial atatemants.

As per our of oven dale alleched

For and on bahalf of tha Board

: "\\ —— Spil Tieors
R T

Pallav Ku Sundl Qautam Savita Jindal
Pariner Whole Time Director Diracior
Momberghig No. 508781 DIM - 08125578 DIN ~ 00440740
.
P
'/"
Place : Gurugram
Date : 30.08.2024 Rufesh Gupta Arup Kumar Mitra
Company Sacrelary CFo
F4BTO FAN - AQHPM2BE1A
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Kanodia Sanyal & Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Sudha Apparels Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Sudha Apparels Limited
(‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary Company {collectively referred to as “the Company” or ‘the
Group'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as ‘Consolidated Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013{the Act”) in the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards(” Ind AS”) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, of, of the state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Company as at 31
March, 2021, and its Profit {consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income},
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statement in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act,
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statement as a whale, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled: the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

[520, Ansal Tower, 38, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (INDIA)
Tel. : +91-11-26452344, 26467214, Fax : +9-11- 41000897, E-mail : kanodiasanyal@gmail.com



Kanodia Sanyal & Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment o
the risks of the material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The results of our
audit procedure provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 35 in the financial statements relating to Company holds 150 Bonds of Yes

Bank for Rs. 152,685,000/ in present scenario the value of Bonds is nil. The holders of Yes Bank Bonds
approached to Apex Court and placed a proposal to Yes Bank Bonds are converted into Equity Shares in
ratio of 1 Bond: 19551 equity shares of Rs. 2 each with locking period of 3 years. The decision is pending
in Apex Court. Further we refer note na. 28 relating to Capital Advance and note no.28 and note no. 26
relating to fire accident occurred on 5 January 2021,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does
not include the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report
tontaining other information is expected to be made availabie to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsihility is to read the
otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1520, Ansal Tower, 38, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 {INDIA) ]
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable , matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceisa high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken cn the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

1520, Ansal Tower, 38, Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (INDIA)
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
orin aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and (i} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with the governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonahly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial results include the unaudited financial statements/ financial information of cne
Associates reflect total share of loss Rs. 6860 as on 315 March 2021, has considered in the consolidated

financial results.

This financial statements/ financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements/financial infarmaticn. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the Management.

Our opinion an the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter with
respect to our reliance on the financial statement /financial information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

1520, Ansal Tower, 38, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (INDIA)
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c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account;
d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

e. onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure A’. our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the
Company to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditars’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us:

i, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Refer to Note 26 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31,2021.

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Charteredﬁﬁcjountan}s

FRN: 008396 J /

{(Pallav Kurfjar Vaish)
Partner

Membership no.: 508751

UDIN: 21508751AAAAFH9160

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30" June 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sudha Apparels Limited (‘the
Company’) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {‘the Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial cantrols, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, bath issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financia! reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated (nd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Continued.....ommmenn
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Annexure B to the Auditors’ Report......o o CONTL

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”,

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered Acgoyntants

{Pallav Ku Vaish)
Partner

Membership no.: 508751
UDIN; 21508751AAAAFH9160

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30*" June 2021
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= T T === SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH ' 2021
Nate
Particulars o A5 AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
ASSETS o
{1) |Financlal Assets
(=) |Cash and cash equivalents 1 18,093,771 26,91,288
{b) [Bank Balance wther than fa} above 2 3,50,00,000
{c) |Derivative financlal Instruments
{d] |Receivables
i} Trade Receivables 3 12,7160, 707 6,40,85821
i} Other Receivables
{e) [Loans 4 1,85,17,55,851 1,32,0534,778
{f} |Investments g 2,64,82,00,610 2,95,80,48,785
{g} [Other Financial assets 6 2,14,23,594 2,05,79,045
(2) |Non-flnanclal Assats
{a} |ioventcries 7 3,60,72,009 4,0,00,000
{b} |Current tax assets (Met) 48,36,47,120 45,54,28,427
{c} |Deferred tax Assets (Wet) .
{d} |Investment Property 9 57,40,01,565 60,02,16,157
{e} |Biologlcal assets other tham bearer plants -
{f] |Property, Plant and Equipment @ 14,52,98,268 15,40,41,851
{g) |Capital work-In-progress
{h} [Intangible assets vader development
{i} |Other Intangible assets
()} jOther non-financlal assets 10 6,65,07,961 6,65,80,398
Total Assets 5,99,08,21,456 5,72,62,06,580
LIABILITIES AND EQUFTY
LIABILITIES
{1} |Financlal Uabiilfles
{a) [Derlvative financlzl Instruments
{b) |Payahles
(l|Trade Payahles
1} dues of mlcro enterprises and smal enterprises
1} dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
{I} Other Payables
1) dues of micro enterprises and smal enterprises
li} dues of creditors other than mlcro enterprises and small enterprises
{c} |Debt Securitles
{d} |Borrowings {Other than Debt Securitles) 11 1,36,58,30,050 1,71,7161,811
{e} |Other Financial liabilities 12 3,84,28225 3,44,24,935
{2} |Non-Flnanclal Llabllitles
{a) |Current tax llabifitles (Net) 13 46,05,62,161 42,15,33,161
{b] |Provisions 14 54,62,602 45,71,72,612
{c] |Deferred tax iizhilities {Net} 15 16,75,10,918 9,38,05,832
{d} [Other non-financial izbllitles 16 66,62,79%0 94,42 136
(3) [equiry
{a) |Equlty Share capital 17 78,658,120 78,898,120
Minority Interest (15,67,87,382}
{b) |Other Equity 3,93,84,66,550 3,14,15,56,305
Total Llabllitles and Equity 5,90,08,21,456 5,72,62,06,580
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements
In terms of our repon of even date attachad
For KANODIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartergs Accountanls
Fiay Registratign Mo OOBESEN -\
h} e Sy =
SQM"IT;- JTe
Pallav Kufhar Valsh Sunll Gaulam Sovila Jindal|
Partner Wholo Tima Direclor Dirgclor
Wembsrship No. 508751 DIN - 08125576 DIN - 00448740
LY
Gt -
Place: Gurugram ajesh Gupla Arup Kumar Mitra
Date;: 30.06.2021 Company Sacrelary CFQ
F4870 PAN - AQHPM2661A
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ANI LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED S15T MARCH' 2021

S o - ) For the yedr ended For the year ended
Pertlculass Note Ma. | 315t March’ 2021 31gt March' 2020
1) [Revenue from operstions - T ) i = T
W [mrerest Inoome 14,720,887 12,61,20,627
{v}  |Netgainenfalrvalue changss
[wl]  |met gain on derecogaition of financlal Instruments.
under amortised cost category
{uli)  [Sals of Mutual Fund Unkts 18 1940,17,489 46,7795 604
viit)  |Sals of Investment
tix)  |Cthars 7,00,000 10,50,000
Totul Revenue from operatlcne 34,19,27376 59,49,66,231
fu}  [Other Meome
f |Oividend Income 49,77,163 23789102
]l |Rental Income 13,10.05,500 14,03,26,900
Tolal Revenue from other Income 13,59.03,183 16,41,15,002
[Mi]  |Total Incoma [H1)) 47,79.10,559 75,90,82,233
Expenies
) |Finance Costs 19 7.09,81,631 84881471
fl}  [Mat lots on falr velue changes ] 24,07,315 30,97,560
(B} [Netfoss on derecognition of financial inslruments under amortlsed cost category
(v} [imipairmient on financlal lnstruments
(vl  |Cast ol materlals consumed
W) [Purchases of Stock-In-trade i1 18,80,17 489 24,04,12,852
Iwily  [Changes in Inventorles of finlehad goods, stack-in- trede snd work-ln- progree: 1 18,27,991 21,56,0%.8a8
I} [Employee Benelits Expanses 2 27,85,891 32,55,306
()  |Depreciation, smortization and Impalrmant ] 1,94,02,083 1,15,04,095
it |othere expaneat {to be specifled) 2 00,70,766 20,07,5%
Losi on fire In Bullding 168,174
Contingent Provision ageinst Standard Assets 4,80,140 (30,973)
i} |Total Exprenses {iv) 29,75,85,520 57,16,61,900
W) |Profit/ {lost) before enceptlonal lems and cax (1i-lv) 103,220,035 18,74,20.313
v kEmpﬂom! ems
Provitlo for Diminution In value of investment - (4,80,37,314)
Provislan for Mon Performing Assets . (10,71,09,670)
Mingrity Interest . (90,06,280)
Share of Lossin Associsted Enterprises 6,860 10,551
[¥Il}  |Profiiftiass] before cax (v -v1] 18,03,14,179 34,13,63. 246
(VI [Tan Expenze:
2} |Current Tax 4,17,00,000 4,36,00,000
b} |Deferred Tax E
¢} |Tex Adjustment for Eatllar Yeors
{I%)  |Pradit / {losg)  for the pertod Trom contlnuing operatians|y-Viit)
X}y |Profit/flacs) from discantinuad cperations
%) |Tax Expanse of discontinued operations
(KN} {Profit/{loss) from o d operstions{afier bax) {X-()
{5)  [Prom/{lnss) for the periad (De4NI11) 13,06,14,179 20,79,63,246
P¥Iv)  |Other Comprehenshve Income
{A}]3. Equity Instrumente through OCH 30,81,53,431 12,29,53,489
7, Fe~messurment of difined beneft phin (21,807)
() Income tax relating 1o Iterns that will not be raclassifiad 4o profit or oss {1,37,05,085) {2.94,10,475)
Total A 3,44,26,539 9,35,43,014
uulm tearms that will ba reclass|Ned to peofit or nss
Change In falr value of equity Instrument
(] Income tax relating ta iterns that will be reclassified ta profit or loss
TotalB - .
Qther Comprehenslva Incoma (A + B} 23,44,26 53 9,35,43,014
IXV] [Totul Comprehenslve Income for tha period (NIHMIV] 37.30,40.718 39,15,05,260
{kvi) |Eamings per equity share (for continuing operations)
Basie (Rs.] % 176.61 ATT26
!Dllukd {Rs.) b3 175,651 I
Sen ylng notes to the financlal geat b
I terms of our regoet of even date attached
For mad on behalf of the Board
] S.. od ‘Vlr fo :]? J
= \ o S
I
Sunk Geulam Savia Jindat
Whola Time Diackor DHraclor
DIN - 08125576 DiN - DD449740
LS
L e
Place: Gurugram Gupta Arup Kumar Mirs
TPy Secrelay CFO

Date; 3900, 202%
P4870 PAN - AQHPM20814




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED ==
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2021
Far the year ended | For the year ended 315t
| 325t March' 2021 March 2020
Net Profit/(Loss} before Extracrdinary Items and Tax 18,03,21,039 18,74,20.333
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation and amortisation 1,54,02,093 2,15,04,086
Interest Income
IND AS Adjustment 34,07,315 30,97,560
Dividend Received / Profit or Loss on redemptian of (nvestments
Losa/(Profit) on transfer of kand
Flnance Cost
Contingent Provision for Standard Assets Written back £,80,140 {30,975)
Operating prafit /{loss} before working capital changes
Changes In working capital :
Adjustment for {increase )/decrease In operating assets
Trade Recetvables and Other Financlal assets (8,29,39,886) {9,01,12,141)
Inventorias 79,27,.951 21,56,02,388
AdJustment for Increase/(decreass) In operating llabllities
Trade payable & other payable (49,56,193) {64.44,558)
Other financlal llabliitias
Provisions
Cash generated from Cperations
Direct income tax{pald)/refunds (8,14,23,676) {4,49,07,489)
Net Cash flow from f{used In) operating activities(A) 4,26,18,823 28,6128, 110
Cash Flow from Investing Actlvities
Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangibie nssets
Proceeds from sale of Fraperty, Plant & Equipment -
Purchase of Fixed Assets {53,770)
Long term loan advances
Net proceeds from sale/(purchase) of investments {42,77,22,768) {21,04,57,730}
Sale of Investments
Bank deposlt nat considered as cash and cash equivalents {ret)
Fair value adjustment of Financlal Assets
|interest Recelved
Net Cash flow framf{used In) lnvesting Activitles{ B] (42,77,22,768) {21,95,11,500)
m d
Proceeds fram torrewings {Including Ind AS adjustments} -
Net increase/(Decrease} in borrowings £1,93,52,974 {6,88,42,387)
Interast paid
Net Cash Flow from flused In} Finaneing Activitles | C) 41,93,52,974 {6,88,43,387)
Net Increase f{decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,42,48,025 (22,25,177)
(A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26,91,288 49,16,465
Difference of Subsldary Company (1,30,546)
Cash and cash equivafents at the end of the year 4,68,09,771 26,91,288
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached
For KANQDIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Cmnafed'ﬁgwunlanls
386N i
R.HE ~ s o ﬂ..-lf:i-l'?-— J}hﬂ-‘*—'"t
e e e e
Sunll Gautam Sevita Jindal
Whala Time Direclor Dlractor
Membershlp No. 508751 DIN - 08425578 DIN - 00440740
&
A
Place: Gurugram ﬁosh Gupta Arup Kumar Mlira
Date: 30.06,2021 mpany Secralary CFO
F4870 PAN - AQHPM2661A
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

A) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets and

liabilities that are required to be carried at fair vales by (nd AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

B) PRINCIPLES OF CONSCLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial statements relate to SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED ("the company") and its subsidiary company and associate. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on following basis.

a) The financial statements of the cornpany and its subsidiary company are combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in
accordance with Accounting Standard {AS) 21-"Consolidated financial $tatement".

b) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the
subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

¢) The difference between the proceeds disposal of investment in subsdiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilites as of the
date of disposal is recogised in the consildated profit and loss statement being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

d) Minority interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsdiary is identified and adjusted against the income of the group in order to
arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the company.

&) Minority interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsdiary is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate
from liabilities and the equity of company's shareholders.

f) Investment in Associate companies has been accounted under the equity method as per Accounting standard {(As)-23"Accounting for
investment in associates in consclidated financial statements”,

g) The company accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net aseets of associates, after efiminating unrealized profits and losses
resulting from transaction between the company and its associates to the extent of its share, through its consolidated profit and loss
statement, to the extent such change is attributable to the associates profit and loss staterent and through its reserves for the balance

based on available information.

h) The difference between the cost of investment in the associates and its share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the
associates is identified in the financial statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

i} As far as possible, the consolidated financial statement are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
evants In similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the company's separate financial statements.

C) Investments cther than in subsdiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard {AS)13 on "Accounting for
Investment"”.

D} Other significant accounting policies
These are set out under "significant Accounting policies” as given in the company's separate standalone Financial statement.
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CAS5H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Cashin Hand 27,400 49,056
Balances with schedule Banks in Current Accounts 17,82,371 26,42,232
Total 18,09,771 26,91,288
BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN (A) ABOVE
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Balances with Banks
-Fixed Deposit with original maturity of more than three months 3,50,00,000
Total 3,50,00,000
RECEIVABLES
31-03-2021 31.03.2020
Trade Receivables 12,71,60,707 6,40,85,821
Tatal 12,71,60,707 6,40,85,821
LOANS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Loans and Advances 1,85,20,48,448 1,32,37,09,223
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 1,07,82,464 78,96,616
ECL on Loan & Advances {1,10,71,061) {1,10,71,061})
Total 1,85,17,59,851 1,32,05,34,778
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars 31-03-2(21 31-03-2020
Interest Accrued 2,14,23,594 2,05,75,045
Total 2,14,23,594 2,05,79,045
Inventories
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Stock in Trade - Units of Mutual Fund 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
Total 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Advance Income Tax {Including tax deducted at source) 48,36,47,120 45,54,28,427
Mat Credit Entitlement/{utilization)
Total 48,36,47,120 45,54,28,427
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OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Capital Advances 6,49,82,387 6,49,82,387
Prepaid Exp. 3,22,192 3,04,749
Security Deposit 12,03,382 12,893,262
Total 6,65,07,961 6,65,80,398
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
{A) In India
At amortised caost :
From Bodies Corporate {Repayable on demand) 1,36,58,30,050 1,71,71,61,811
1,36,58,30,050 1,71,71,61,811
{B) Outside India
Total (A+B) 1,36,58,30,050 1,71,71,61,811
Out of above
Secured
Unsecured
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABIITIES
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-202Q
Other Liabilities 5,895,975 -
Security Dapaosits 5,78,02,563 5,78,02,563
Less - Ind AS adjustment 1,99,70,313 2,33,77,628
3,78,32,250 3,44,74,935
Total 3,84,28,225 3,44,24,935
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Provisicn for Income Tax 46,05,62,161 42,15,33,161
Total 46,05,62,161 42,15,33,161
PROVISIONS
Partlculars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Employee Benefits 6,70,025 5,97,262
Provision for Non Performing Assets =
Provision for Diminution in value of Investment 45,26,62,913
Contingent pravision for standard assets 47,92,577 39,12,437
Total 54,62,602 45,71,72,612
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Deferred Tax Liability
For Depreciation difference as per books and I.Tax Act
Ind AS Impact on fair value of investmet 16,75,10,917 9,38,05,832
Deferred Tax Assets
Carry forward Long Term Capital Loss
Disallowance under Section 43-B of 1. Tax Act
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Llabllitles) 16,75,10,917 9,38,05,832
OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Other Liabilities 66,62,790 04,41,136
Total 66,62,790 42,15,33,161
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH' 2020

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

A. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of Shares Amount in Rs.
Particulars AS AT AS AT
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 AS AT 31.03.2021 | AS AT 31.03.2020
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
At the beginning of the period 727012 7,27,012 72,710,120 72,70,120
Add: Additions durlng the periad 62,800 62,800 6,28,000 6,258,000
Less: Reduction during the period - . - -
At the end of the period 7,89,812 7,89,812 78,98,120 78,95,120
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
&t the beginning of the period 7,27,012 7,272,012 72,740,120 72,70,120
Add: Additions during the perlod 62,800 62,800 £,28,000 6,28,000
Less: Reduction during the period - - - -
At the end of the period 7,689,812 7,869,812 78,98,120 78,598,120
Details of equity shares In the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of shares is as under:
Number of shares held % holding
Particulars
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Equity Shares of 10 each
1. lindal Global Finance & Investment Ltd . 1,07,416 1,07,416 14.77 14,77
2. Flakt Dealcom Ltd. 35,761 35,761 4.92 4.92
2. Pushpanjali lnvestrade Pwt Ltd, 98,000 98,000 12.41 12.41
4 Dharam Pal Jindal 64,900 69,500 9.61 9.61
5. Savita Jindal 1,06,662 1,06,662 14.61 14.61
6. Saket Jindal 70,000 70,000 9.63 9.63
7. Raghav lindal 1,45,123 1,45,122 19.96 19.56
8. G¥N Fuels Limited 50,400 50,400 .38 5.38
B. OTHER EQUITY
Items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
income
Partlculars Capital Toé:lu(i]t;her
Capital Reserve on Securitv Statutory General Reserve| Retained Earnings Qther items of
Reserve account of Premium Reserve ocl
Cansolidation
Opening balance 5,158,498 | 2,18,66,135 s 61,38,02,626 8,27,46,5597 | 1,7552,21,386 22,43,35200 | 2,74,95,53.442
Profit/Loss for the period (6,258,000} 29,79,63,246 29,73,35,246
Transfer during the year 6,30,70,00¢ - 6,30,70,000
Transfer during the year - .
IND AS adjustment of Subsisary 11,24,603 11,24,603
company
Transfer during the year -
Statutory Reserve {5,30,70,000) {6,30,70,000)
Transfer during the year -
General Reserve
Other comprehensive income 9,35,43,014 9,35,43,014
Balance as on 31.03.2020 5,15,81,498 |  2,18,66,135 - 67,68,72,626 8,21,18,597 1,99,12,39,235 31,78,78,214 |  3,14,15,56,305
Qpening batance 51581458 | 2,18,66,135 s 67,68,72,626 8,21,18,587 |  1,99,12,39,235 31,78,78,214 |  3,14,15,56,305
IND AS adjustment of Subsisary (2,18,66,135) 3,000 44,57,32,701
company
Profit/Lass for the period - 13,86,14,179 13,86,14,17%
Transfer during the year 2,77,24,208 - 2,77,24,208
Transfer during the year .
IND AS adjustment of Subsisary -
Transfer during the year - {2,77,24,208) {2,77,24,208)
Transfer during the year -
Other comprehensive income 23,44,26,539 23,44,26,539
palance s on 31.03.2021 5,15,81,498 ; . 70,45,99,834 | 82118597 | 2547861907 |  5523,04,753 | 3,93,24,66,589
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
R For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars )
31st Mar' 2021 31st Mar* 2020
Interest on Intercorporate Loan 10,70,80,707 7,63,7%,411
interest on Bond 4,01,29,180 4,57,41,216
Sale of Mutual Fund Units 19,40,17,489 46,77,95,604
Profit on sale of Current Investments (net] -
Dividend 49,77,283 2,37,89,102
Agriclture Rent 7,060,000 10,506,000
Rent Received 13,10,05,900 14,03,26,900
Total 47,79,10,559 75,90,82,233
OTHER INCOME
For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars
31st Mar' 2021 31st Mar' 2020
Liability written back .
Miscellaneous Income <
Total & =
FINANCE COSTS
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
31st Mar' 2021 31st Mar' 2020
Interest on Intercorporate Loan 7,08,35,443 8,48,37,130
Interest - On Others 1,465,188 -
Bank Charges 44,341
Total 7,09,81,631 8,48,81,471

20 WNet loss onfair value changes
For the year ended [For the year ended
particulsrs 31st Mar' 2021 31st Mar' 2020
Loss on fair value of investments - 30,97,560
Total - 30,97,560
21 PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
Purchases 18,40,17,489 24,04,13,982
Total 18,40,17,489 24,04,13,982
22 Changes in Inventories of finlshed goods, stock-in- trade and wark-in- progress
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
Hem - Mutual Fund Units
Opening Stock 4,40,00,000 25,96,02,888
Less - Closing Stock 3,60,72,009 4,40,00,000
Decreasef{increase} in Stock in Trade 79,27,991 21,56,02,888
23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
Salaries , Wages, Allowances and Bonus 27,11,099 31,67,670
Staff Welfare m 22,792 87,636
L
Total of b \?2.; 27,33,891 32,55,306

79



29

25

OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
D.P. Charges 26,157 3,745
Rent 125,242 97,500
Rates & Taxes 622,272 1,789,243
CSR Expenses * 45,00,000 500,000
Postage & Telephone 52,608 53,552
Printing & Stationery 7,114 6,870
Fee & Subscription 31,600 58,420
Travelling - Director - -
Travelling & Conveyance 2,12,300 462335
Insurance 4,87.355 2,563,313
Repair & Malntenance-Bullding - -
Repair & Maintenance-Cthers 1,74,152 3,72,181
Electriclty Expenses 687,463
onnectivity Expenseas 15,120
Legal & Professional Charges 7.26,560 5,42 363
Investment Written Off -
Internal Audit Fee 11,800 11,800
Advertisement & Publicity 64,878 71,478
Auditors' Remuneration : -
- Audit Fee 88,500 88,600
- Tax Audlt Fee 11,800 -
- Certification / others services 1,328,650 -
Miscellanecus Expenses 87,225 2,356,278
Total 80,70,796 29,37,576

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive

potential equity shares cutstanding during the year :-

Partlculars

For the year ended
31st Mar' 2021

For the year ended
31st Mar' 2020

Basic / Dilutive Earnings Per Share

Profit after tax as per profit & loss account
Weighted Average number of equity shares
Basic and diluted earnings per share

37,30,40,718
7,89,812

175.51

31,53,63,415
7,89,812
377.26

EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Details of expenditure on Corporate Seciat Responsibility Activities as per Section 1350f the Companies Act, 2013 read

Rs. In Laks

Partlculars

2020-21

2018-20

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the

b) Amount spent on:
i) Construction / acquisition of assets

ii} on purpose other than (i) above

54.85

45.00

52.00

5.00

Details of Amount spent towards CSR is given below

Particulars

2020-21

2019-20

Education
Health

45.00

2.00
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Contingent Liabllities | Commmmilments not accounted for

Dlsputed |
For A7Y 2008-10
For AfY 2013-14

Tax D d (undar appeal)
453410

3.80,280

453410
3,80,280

Afire accldent occurrad on 5™ lanuary, 2021 at the Corporate Office of the Company at Gurgaon, Maost of the records of the Company were burned and
the Company is in the process of reconstructing the same, Lass incurred to building is being assessed and necessary accounting treatemant will be made on
finalisation of insurance clalm,

1,36,84,350 1,36,84,350

In respact of Bank Guaranles 1ssued by Indusing Bank Limited (previously by Kotak
SERVICE TAX LIABILITY

The Company has not provided for 2 Secvice Tax liability on "Renling of immovable Property” lo some tenants for the period from October, 2010
lo September, 2011 amounting to Rs. 78,35,4324~ which haa been disputed by these tenants through Iheir association before Honb'le Supreme
Courl, of which 50% of the arrear duas amounting to Rs. 38,17 716f- has been directly depasiled by these tenants with tha Service Tax Authorily
under he diraction from the Apex Caud and for the balance 50% of Service Tax dues, the final adjudication of the Apex Courl is awalled. The
Company, hawever, holds writtan commiment from such tenants for reimbursement of all llabllities arising dua to non-payment of Service Tax by

the Company.
Ralated Party Disclosure as per Ind AS 24

a. Key Managarial Personnel

Mr, Sunil Gautam - Wholstime Director
Mr. Arup Kumar Mitra - CFO
Mr. Rajgsh Gupta - Company Secratary

Related Parties with whom Transaction have taken place d

ing the year

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Remuneration
Key Manapemenl Peraonal 20,00,546 33,8031
b) Other Related Partiss with whom Transactions have taken place during the Year

Aszsociate Company

Kushagra Infrastructure Pyt. Limilsd

Other Related ConcerniParty

Smi. Savita Jindal (Qireclor)
Transacactions with Rolated Party during the year
Loen lo Associale Company (cloging balance) ¥1,08,870 71,059,870
Payment to Other Related Party { Smt. Savita Jindal)
a, Renl Paid 97,500 97 500
b. Olher Services 97,500 97,500
Ti tions with Related parties during the Year

7,765,232 6,23,230

Managerial Remuneratlon - Mr. Sunll Gautam - Wholatime Directar

NOTES ON CAPITAL ADVANCE

Capital Advances of Rs.64 982,387/ (Previoua Year Rs, 64,882 387/) under Nole na. - & represent advances mada to various partles
{Local/Agricultarilist) for purchases of various plols of land at diffarent locations in the stale of Maharashtra on behalf of the Company for
Investment purpose. Although the company halds original fille desds in respect of all such land purchased by these parlies & taken possession of
the land proparties, tha final conveyance infavour of company |2 pending due to restrictions imposed by the local autherities, Suilable
approprialion of such capital advances would be mada upon execution of conveyance desdsisetllemant of accaunts wilh all these parties upon

disposal of lhe same.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Tha Company has this year idenlified two reportable primary Business Segment on the basis of risk & return Invalved, which are financing &

Investment and Renting of Property.

Segment Revenus, Reaults & other information

Financa & Renting of

Particularg Investment Properly Others Total
Income from operalions 34,69,04 659 - . 34 69,04 658
[60,56,06 4084} i) {-) (60,565,085 404}
Other operating Incoma - 13,10,05,900 - 13,10,05,800
{2.11,75,686) {13,87.32,9000) f-1 116.09,12 786)
Segrment Results 34,69,04,658 13,10,06,500 . 47 79,10,659
[62,67.86,370) {13.97.32,900) (-3 {76,6510.270)
Finance cosl 7,09,81,631 . - 7,08,81,621
{8.,8B,61,830) ) ) {6.68.61,830}
CHher expanditure 20,72,05,79¢ 1,94,02,083 - 22,66,07,800
146.,50,97.028) £2.07,71,226) {=) {48.58.68.352)
Profit/ {Loss) before Tax 6,87,17,232 11,16,03,807 - 18,03,21,029
{0 48 54 BEV) 111,80,61,574) -} i21,38,16.231)
Sagmenl Assets 5,24,33,560,083 T4,74,71,392 . 6,99,08,21,465
(4,44 40,07 5704 {63 60,37 261) -} 16,08 08 44 831)
Segmant Liability 2,00,60,28,520 3,04,28,226 . 2,04,44,56,745
{1,44,97 12,276 15,78.08.563) {-} | {1.50.75,20 839
Capital employed 3,23,73,21 643 70,80,43,167 . 3,94,63,64,710
(2,99,42 95,294) {57 90,208,688} -} | §3.57.32.22.892)




294

GRATUITY

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to add|tlonal unit of employee benefit entitlemeant and measures each unit separately to build up the final

obligation,

Discloser for defined plans based on actuarial reparts:

Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 3,64,439 13,60,475
Current Service Cost 63,754 38,811
Interest Expense or Cost 24,782 90,663
Re-measurement (or Actuarial} {gain) / loss arising from: 0 0
change in demographic assumptions 0 0
change in financial assumptions 0 0
experience variance {i.e, Actual experlencevs assumptions) 0 {1,88,237)
Actuarial Losses (Gains) 21,807 0
Past Service Cost o )
Effect of change In foreign exchange rates 0 0
Benefits Paid 0 9,38,273
Acguisition Ad)ustment 0 0
Effect of business combinations or disposals Q 0
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 4,74,782 3,64,439
Bifurcation of Present Value of Obllgatlen attheend of the year as per revised Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Liability {Short term) 8,729 6,985
Non-Current Liabllity {Long term) 4,66,053 3,57,454
Present Value of Obllgatlon 4,74,782 3,64,439
Changes In the Falr Value of Plan Assets
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Falr Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Incame
Employer's Contributlon
Employee's Contribution =
Benefits Paid -
Raturn on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense -
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Falr Value of Plan Assets as at the end = z
Change in the Effect of Asset Ceiling
Partlculars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Effect of Asset Celling at the heglnning s
Interast Expense or Cost {to the extent not recognised in net interest expense - -
Re-measurement {or Actuarial} [gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling - -
Effact of Asset Ceiling at the end z -
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Service Cost 63,754 39,811
Past Service Cost = -
Lass / {Gain) on settlement = =
Net Interest Cost / {Income} on the Net Defined Benefit Liabllity / {Asset} 24,782 50,663
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statemant 88,536 1,30,474




Other Comprehenslve Income

Particulars

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

Actuarlal {gains) / losses

change in demograpbic assumptions

change in financial assumptions

experience variance (l.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

others

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised In net interest expense
Re-measurament {or Actuarial) {gain}/loss arising because of change in effect of asset

ceiling

21,807

(1,88,237)

Components of defined benefit costs recognlsed In other comprehensive Income

21,807

(1,88,237)

Major categories of Plan Assets {as percentage of Total Plan Assets)

Particulars

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

Government of India securities
State Government securlties
High guality corporate bonds
Equity shares of listed companies
Property

Special Deposit Scheme

Funds managed by Insurer

Bank balance

Other Investments

Total
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In tarms of provisions conisined under Section - 135 of the Companias Act, 2013,tha Company has constituled & Corporale Social Responsibility
(CSR) Commitiee. The primary funclion of the commilies ig t0 assiszl tha Board of Diractors in formulaling 8 CSR policy and review the

Impternantalion and pregress of ihe same from time to time,

Based on Information avatfable with the company, there are no duss owed by the company 10 Micr, Small & Medium Enterprise, which are
The Company has nol mads any proviston for Dividend recelvable on 12% Redsmabla Cumulalive Converlible Preferance Sharas Issued by
The retirament benelit of the employees of the company Is recognised on payment basls as & when arised.

RESERVE BANK OF WDIA REGISTERED NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

The company is registard as Non Banking Finance Company wilh Reserva Bank of India vide Reglslralion no. 05.02274 dated 16.05.1998,
Additional parleulars as raquired in lerms of pamagraph 13 of Non Systemically important Mon-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepling or
Hekding Gompanles)} Prudential Norms (Reaerve bank) Directions, 2015 sepretaly atiched as Annexure - 1.

Company hofd 160 Bonds of Yes Bank for Rs. 152,685,000/~ In preseni scenario the vslie of Bonds {8 nil. The hokders of Yas Bank Bonds,

Previous yrears figures have besn regroupad / reamangad whare ever nacessary.

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of tha financlal statements,

Ag par our report of aven date attached

For KANODIA YAL & ASSOCI:&TES Far and on bahalf of e Board
Charterad Accaunlanfs £ 3
Fim Istration Mo, 33065/ y \
o SR
e———ts
Sunll Gaulam Savita Jindal
Whoale Time Director Director
Membership No. 508751 DIN - 08125576 DIN - 00449740
4
“t-  Abs
Placa - Gunigram
Date : 30.06.2021 iesh Gupla Arup Kumar Mitra
party Secrelary CFO
4870 PAN « ACHPM2G1A
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Registered Office: 2/5, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SUKH SAGAR
FLAT NO 8A KOLKATA WB 700020 Phone 033-46023115
Email: secretarial@sudhaapparels.com Website: www.sudhaapparels.com
CIN: L17299WB1981PLC033331

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of Sudha Apparels Limited will be
held on Thursday, the 30th September, 2021 at 11.30 A.M. (IST) through Video
conferencing/Other Audio Visual means (VC / OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the (a) Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31* March, 2021 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors
thereon and (b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
31% March 2021 together with Auditors’ Report thereon and in this regard to pass the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

(a) "RESOLVED that the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2021 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors
thereon be and are hereby considered and adopted."

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 together with the Report of Auditors
thereon be and are hereby considered and adopted."

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sunil Gautam, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

“‘RESOLVED that Shri Sunil Gautam, (DIN-08125576) who retires by rotation be and is
hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company and such appointment would not have
any effect on the continuity of his tenure as Whole Time Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

Place
Dated

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related Party transaction(s)
with Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited for providing Loan, as detailed in the
Explanatory Statement to the Notice.”

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related Party transaction(s)
with Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement to the Notice.”

By order of the Board
For Sudha Apparels Limited

: Gurugram Rajesh Gupta
: 12" August, 2021 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1.

2.

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Secretarial Standards (SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India

Name Shri Sunil Gautam

Age 58 Years

Qualification B.Com

Brief Profile Expertise in specific Wide Experience in the field of Finance & Accounts

functional area

Terms and Conditions of appointment | In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013.
Shri Sunil Gautam is liable to retire by rotation and being
eligible for re-appointment

Remuneration last drawn (including N.A.
sitting fees, if any)

Date of First appointment as Director 01.06.2019
of the Company

No. of Shares Held NIL

Inter-se relationship with  other | None
Directors

Number of meetings of the Board | Please refer Corporate Government Report
attended during the financial year
(2020-21)

Directorship of other companies as Liberty General Insurance Limited
on 31% March, 2021

Chairman/Member of Committee of NIL
other Companies

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has
vide circular dated 13th January, 2021 read together with circulars dated 8th April, 2020, 13th
April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide circular dated 15th January, 2021 read with circular
dated 12th May, 2020 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) permitted convening the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the members at a common
venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’), SEBI Circulars and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the
Registered Office of the Company.

In terms of MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of members has been dispensed
with, the facility of appointment of Proxies by Members will not be available. Hence the Proxy
Form, Attendance Slip and Route map are not annexed to this Notice.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

The VC/OAVM facility for members to join the meeting, shall be kept open 15 minutes before
the start of the AGM and shall be closed on expiry of 15 minutes after start of the AGM.
Members can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM by following the instructions mentioned in
this notice

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, Notice of the
AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company (RTA)/Depositories.
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the

86



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

website of the Company at www.sudhaapparels.com, website of the Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited i.e. www.cse-india.com and on the website of NDSL evoting@nsdl.co.in.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of
transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated
with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form.
Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Alankit
Assignments Ltd. for assistance in this regard. In case of joint holders attending the meeting,
the person who is first in order of names recorded in the Register of Members will be entitled
to vote at the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the person who is first in order of names
recorded in the Register of Members will be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

Details under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Secretarial Standards
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting forms integral part of the
Notice. The Director has furnished the requisite declarations/Disclosure for her
Appointment/re-appointment.

All the documents referred to in the notice shall be available for inspection by the Members at
the registered office of the Company on all working days i.e. except Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. up to AGM. Such documents will also be
available electronically for inspection by the members from the date of circulation of this
Notice upto AGM on the basis of the request being sent on secretarial@sudhaapparels.com.

Pursuant to MCA Circular and Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder, the companies are allowed to send communication to shareholders electronically.
Therefore, the Members are requested to register/update their e-mail address with Registrar
and Transfer Agent, Alankit Assignments Ltd or their respective Depositary Participants as the
case may be, for receiving all communication including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars,
etc. from the Company electronically.

Corporate/Institutional Members are required to send a scanned certified true copy of the
Board Resolution/Authority Letter, etc., authorizing their representative to attend the AGM
through VC / OAVM on their behalf and to vote through remote e-voting or during the AGM.
The said Resolution/Authorisation shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its
registered email address at amadelhi12@gmail.com with a copy marked to the Company at
secretarial@sudhaapparels.com, if they have voted from individual Tab and not uploaded the
same in the NDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
documents required by Act will be made available for inspection by Members of the Company
during the AGM on the basis of the request being sent on secretarial@sudhaapparels.com.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request up to 22™ September, 2021,
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number on
secretarial@sudhaapparels.com. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. The
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
depending on the availability of time as appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM.

Instructions for e-voting and joining general meeting are as follows:-

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44
of SEBI Listing Regulations and in terms of SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed
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Entities, the Company is pleased to provide the facility of voting by electronic means viz.
‘remote e-voting’ through National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), for all members of
the Company to enable them to cast their votes electronically, on the resolutions mentioned in
the notice of the 40" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company.

The facility for electronic voting system, shall also be made available at the 40" AGM. The
Members attending the AGM, who have not cast their votes through remote e-voting, shall be
able to exercise their voting rights at the AGM.

The remote e-voting% period begins on Monday, 27" September, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. and ends
on Wednesday, 29" September 2021 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Thursday,
23" September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the
meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM and a person who is not
a Member as on cut off date i.e. 23" September, 2021 should treat this Notice for information
purpose only.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the Paid-up Equity
Share Capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2021.

Mr. Ajit K Mishra, (FCS-9703), Proprietor of Ajit Mishra & Associates, Company Secretaries,
has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting through remote e-voting and
e-voting during the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall submit his report, to the Chairman, within 2 working days from the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be placed on the website of the Company i.e. www.sudhaapparels.com and shall
simultaneously be communicated to the Stock Exchange.

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

Individual Shareholders 1.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can
holding securities in demat login through their user id and password. Option will be
mode with CDSL made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to
cast your vote.

3. If the useris not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReqistra
tion

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link
in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
(holding securities in demat account through your Depository Participant registered with
mode) login through their NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able
depository participants to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.


https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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http://www.cdslindia.com/

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in demat mode with CDSL | CDSL  helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or  contact at  022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client
account with NSDL. ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

IN300***12******-
b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is

q2reessmeesseesthen your user 1D s

1 2**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to
login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the
‘initial password’” which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

()If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to
you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment

i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8
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6.

7.

8.
9.

1.

digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User
ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten

your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) |If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the

check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to secretarial@sudhaapparels.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@sudhaapparels.com. If you are
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to
refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A)

i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned
documents.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting

system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on

the confirmation page.
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7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

I. In case of any queries/grievance, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
for Members and remote e-voting user manual for Members available at the downloads
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or rta@alankit.com or to Company at
secretarial@sudhaapparels.com. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-
voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote. If
you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the
following toll free no.: 1800-222-990. The Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode, may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to
NSDL e-Voting system”

Il. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the
folio which may be used for sending future communication(s)

Ill. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 23" September, 2021.

IV. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the
Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 23"
September, 2021, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. The
Individual Shareholders holding securities in de-mat mode, may follow steps mentioned in
the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”

V. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting at the AGM and a person who is
not a Member as on the cut-off date i.e. 23" September, 2021, should treat this Notice for
information purposes only.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under
“Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link
placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in
the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience 3. Further
Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

B. e-voting result

1. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, unblock the
votes cast through remote e-voting and e-vote cast during AGM and will make, not later
than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by
him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.
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2. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer will be placed on the website
of the Company http://www.sudhaapparel.com and on the website of NSDL at
www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a
person authorized by him in writing. The results will also be immediately submitted to the
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

Other instructions
3. Please note that:

- Login to e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key-in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 'Forgot Password' option
available on the site to reset the same.

- Your login ID and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voting on the
Resolutions placed by the companies in which you are the Shareholder

- It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep it confidential.

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013
Item No 3.

During the year ended 31%" March 2021, the Company has entered into material related Party
Transaction as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation
2015 with Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited and in Compliance thereof. Shareholder’s
approval is being sought herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions
which were in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, placed before it

The Particulars of transaction are as under-

(a) Name of the related Party- Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited

(b) Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel, who is related, if any- Mr. Mangat Ram
Garg, Director

(c) Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole time Director’s relative is a member
of Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited (Resigned from the Company on 22" October,
2020)

(d) Nature of Transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction-
Material terms and particulars of the transactions:

During the year ended 31.03.2021, the Company has provided loan amounting to Rs 6683
lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited for general
corporate purposes.

(e) Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction-
None

None of the Director/Key managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg and his relatives/s being member of Pushpanijali Investrade Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in item No 3 of the Notice for your approval.

Item No 4.

During the year ended 31% March 2021, the Company has entered into material related Party
Transaction as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation
2015 with Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited and in Compliance thereof. Shareholder’s approval is
being sought herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions which were in
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, placed before it

The Particulars of transaction are as under-

(a) Name of the related Party- Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited
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(f) Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel, who is related, if any- Mr. Mangat Ram
Garg, Director (Resigned from the Company on 22" October, 2020)

(b) Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole time Director’s relative is a member
of Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited

(c) Nature of Transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction-
Material terms and particulars of the transactions:

During the year ended 31.03.2021, the Company has provided loan amounting to Rs 2815
lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited for general
corporate purposes.

(d) Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction-
None

None of the Director/Key managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg and his relatives/s being member of Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in item No 4 of the Notice for your approval.

By order of the Board
For Sudha Apparels Limited

Place : Gurugram RAJESH GUPTA
Dated : 12" August, 2021 Company Secretary
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